
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 10 December 2018

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 19 DECEMBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Members of the Committee:
Toby Newman (Chairman)
Anthony Dearlove (Vice-
Chairman)
Joan Bland
Lorraine Hillier
Elaine Hornsby

Mocky Khan
Jeannette Matelot
David Nimmo-Smith
Ian Snowdon

David Turner
Ian White

Substitutes
Nigel Champken-Woods
Steve Connel
Sue Cooper

John Cotton
Stefan Gawrysiak
Elizabeth Gillespie

Sue Lawson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack



2

1 Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman and general housekeeping matters.

2 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 16)

To adopt and sign as correct records the Planning Committee minutes of the meetings 
held on 7 and 21 November 2018.

4 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5 Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn.

6 Proposals for site visits  

7 Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  



3

Development control applications

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information

All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number. 

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page

8 Land off 
Rycote Lane, 
Christmas Hill, 
Rycote Lane, 
near Moreton 
and Thame  

Relocation of Thame Livestock 
Market with buildings to 
accommodate agricultural sales, 
lairage, administrative offices, 
welfare facilities, business units, and 
associated external works to include 
highway access, roadways, vehicle 
parking, vehicle washing and other 
ancillary works.

P17/S4415/FUL 17 - 48

9 Wyevale 
Country 
Gardens, 
Reading Road, 
Harpsden, RG9 
4AE  

Outline planning permission for the 
demolition of all existing structures, 
development of B1 and/or B2 and/or 
D1 floorspace and required parking 
and servicing facilities on the south-
eastern part of the site; development 
of up to 40 dwellings on the rest of 
the site; off-site highways works 
together with associated open space 
and landscaping. All matters to be 
reserved with the exception of 
access.

P18/S0951/O 49 - 68

10 The Pump 
House, 2 
Heyford Hill 
Cottages, 
Heyford Hill 
Lane, 
Littlemore, 
OX4 4YJ  

Demolition of existing lean-to 
outbuilding and replacement with 
new garage/outbuilding.

P18/S3214/HH 69 - 78



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 7 NOVEMBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

Toby Newman (Chairman)

Anthony Dearlove, Joan Bland, Lorraine Hillier, Elaine Hornsby, Mocky Khan, Jeannette 
Matelot, David Nimmo-Smith, Ian Snowdon and David Turner

Apologies:

Ian White tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Sharon Crawford, Paula Fox, Lloyd Jones, Simon Kitson, Nicola Meurer, Abbie Mulcairn 
and Amanda Rendell

Also present: 

Ian Marshall, Principal Transport Engineer, Oxfordshire County Council 

124 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

125 Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2018 as a correct 
record and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

126 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

127 Urgent business 

The development manager advised committee members that application P18/S1215/FUL 
– Thame Park Road, Thame had been withdrawn and would therefore not be considered.

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2

128 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

129 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

130 P18/S1964/FUL - Land off Fieldside Track, Long Wittenham 

The committee considered application P18/S1964/FUL to vary Condition 4 (approved 
plans) of outline planning permission P16/S1124/O for a revised access design on land off 
Fieldside Track, Long Wittenham.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Officer updates:
 Since the publication of the agenda Long Wittenham Parish Council have been 

consulted on all the revised plans and still object to the proposals. They reiterate 
their concerns:

 The application indicates that surface water will not be discharged to the public 
network and as such Thames Water has no objection, however approval should be 
sought from the Lead Local Flood Authority. Should the applicant subsequently 
seek a connection to discharge surface water into the public network in the future 
then it would be considered a material change to the proposal, which would require 
an amendment to the application at which point the council would need to review 
their position.

 Environmental Health have no objections.
 Prior to the site visit, Long Wittenham Parish Council had mapped out their 

interpretation of where the access would be on site. The accuracy of these 
markings could not be verified and in some instances, they were found to be 
incorrect. Members were advised to disregard the markings.

Ian Marshall, Principal Transport Engineer at Oxfordshire County Council was present to 
answer any technical highways questions.

Steve Brown, a representative of Long Wittenham Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Michael Robson and Nick Jones Hill, the applicant’s agents, spoke in support of the 
application.

Sue Lawson, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.  

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 In relation to the usability of the new access, Ian Marshall confirmed that it was 

similar to the previously approved access with good visibility.

Page 6



3

 As a result of the road realignment, the distance from the front curtilage of some 
properties on Didcot Road would be reduced from 6m to 3.2m (still including the 
widened footpath and reduced grass verge.

Some committee members were not satisfied with the proposed access having regard to 
highway safety concerns, air pollution and the potential impact on trees. In this regard, 
officers reminded members that there were no technical objections from consultees to the 
proposal and it would therefore be difficult to defend these reasons should the application 
go to an appeal. 

Members also highlighted concerns about the impact of the highways works on the 
informal and rural character and appearance of Fieldside Track which is a prominent entry 
point to the village. They expressed their concerns about the impact on the amenity of 
residents living in the properties opposite to the proposed access whose front gardens 
served as their main amenity space. Some members requested that an alternative option 
was investigated through discussion with another landowner.

Other members were not satisfied that there were sufficient material planning reasons nor 
support from technical experts to refuse the application and were content that it met policy 
requirements.

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P18/S1964/FUL, for the 
following reasons:

1. The proposed road realignment and associated works would have a detrimental 
impact on the informal rural character of Fieldside Track and the amenity of the 
adjacent residential properties contrary to policy LW4 of the adopted Long 
Wittenham Development Plan and policies G2 and C4 of the South Oxfordshire 
Local Plan 2011.

2. In the absence of a completed Deed of Variation the proposal fails to secure on and 
off-site infrastructure necessary to meet the needs of the development. As such, the 
development would be contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 
CSI1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and Policy T1 of the South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

131 P18/S0181/O - Braze Lane, Benson 

The committee considered outline application P18/S0181/O for a development of up to 19 
dwellings with all matters reserved with the exception of access on land adjacent to The 
Orchard, Braze Lane, Benson.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Bill Pattison, a representative of Benson Parish Council, spoke objecting to the application.  

Craig Tribe, a representative of Berrick Salome Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application. 

Jane Ellingworth and Jan Williams, two local residents, spoke objecting to the application.  
Page 7



4

Giles Brockbank, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Felix Bloomfield, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.  

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that regarding the 
Clincial Commissioning Group’s objection, members were advised that CIL payments 
would help fund the expansion of the doctor’s surgery.

Committee members expressed concern about the urbanising effect of the proposed 
development on the rural character of the area; the detrimental impact on the setting of the 
village and nearby AONB; the coalescence it would lead to between Benson and 
Rokemarsh and the loss of grade 3a agricultural land.

Officers advised committee that this application site was within the area referred to as site 
BEN4 in the Benson Neighbourhood Plan, despite affirmations to the contrary by the 
Parish Councils, they also advised that the loss of agricultural land was not a strong 
ground given the allocation and size of the area involved.

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P18/S0181/O, for the following 
reasons: 

1. The proposal forms part of a housing allocation by virtue of policy NP4 of the made 
Benson Neighbourhood Plan. Policy NP4 of the made Benson Neighbourhood Plan 
requires a comprehensive scheme of development. 
The proposal would fail to fully integrate with the wider allocation and the 
application site is not required to secure the delivery of the Relief Road together 
with a dedicated pedestrian route to Roke.

Due to its form and access arrangements it would result in a development that 
appears piecemeal and would not comprise a comprehensive development of the 
housing allocation. It would not be sufficiently integrated and connected to the 
housing allocation site and wider built context. It would therefore fail to make a 
positive contribution to the quality of the character and functionality of the wider 
settlement as well as the wider housing allocation. Furthermore, the proposed 
development would result in the unnecessary urbanisation of the open countryside 
to the detriment of its character and appearance and would lead to the coalescence 
of Benson and Rokemarsh.

The proposal would not comprise sustainable development as defined by local and 
national legislation. The proposed development would therefore be contrary to the 
National Planning Policy Framework, polices CS1, CSR1, CSEN1 and CSQ3 of the 
South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, saved policies G2, G4, D1 and C4 of the South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 and policies NP4, NP7, NP27, NP28 and NP29 of the 
made Benson Neighbourhood Plan.

2. The proposal would involve the unnecessary loss of grade 3a agricultural land, best 
and most versatile land, contrary to paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.
 

Page 8



5

3. In the absence of a completed S106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to secure 
affordable housing to meet the needs of the district. As such, the development 
would be contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CSH3 of 
the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and Policy NP4 of the adopted Benson 
Neighbourhood Plan.

 
4. In the absence of a completed S106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to secure 

on and off-site infrastructure necessary to meet the needs of the development. As 
such, the development would be contrary to the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Policy CSI1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and Policies T1, 
R2 and R6 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 and Policy NP4 of the adopted 
Benson Neighbourhood Plan. 

132 P18/S1868/FUL - Harpsden Wood House, Harpsden Woods, 
Harpsden 

The committee considered application P18/S1868/FUL to erect a woodland maintenance 
barn at Harpsden Wood House, Harpsden Woods, Harpsden. 

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1868/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement within three years - full planning permission.
2. The development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Detailed tree protection measures to be submitted to, and agreed in

writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement of any works on 
site.

4. The construction materials shall be in accordance with the details
supplied within the application submission.

5. The proposed building hereby approved shall only be used for the
woodland management purposes specified within the application
submission. It shall not be used for any incidental or ancillary residential purposes.

133 P18/S1215/FUL - Thame Park Road, Thame 

Application P18/S1215/FUL had been withdrawn prior to committee.

134 P18/S2125/FUL - 6 Reading Road, Cholsey 

The committee considered application P18/S2125/FUL to redevelop a redundant builders 
yard including the demolition of storage and workshop buildings and the change of use to 
a former office building in order to create one 4-bedroom, seven 3-bedroom, three 2-
bedroom and four 1-bedroom residential units at 6 Reading Road, Cholsey. 

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Page 9



6

Officer updates:
 An error had been identified in the report – CNP H6 from the neighbourhood plan – 

distance requirements between dwellings - should be referenced in the report at 
para 5.4.

 Further comments from the neighbourhood plan group had been received. They 
thought the weight given to the NP should be more than “limited” and pointed out 
the omission of CNP H6.

Chris Jones, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.  

Richard Potter, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Jane Murphy, one of the local ward councillors, spoke to the application.  

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S2125/FUL, subject to the 
prior completion of the Section 106 agreement and the following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission. 
2. Approved plans. 
3. Sample materials required (all). 
4. Dust mitigation. 
5. Landscaping.
6. Surface water drainage works – details required. 
7. Construction traffic management plan. 
8. Contaminated land (preliminary risk assessment). 
9. Contaminated land remediation strategy. 
10. Wildlife protection. 
11. Hours of operation for construction. 
12. Noise – restriction on construction hours. 
13. Provide solar panels and energy performance certificates for market housing. 
14. New vehicular access. 
15. Vision splay protection. 
16. Roads and footpaths prior to occupation. 
17. Provide parking and manoeuvring areas

The meeting closed at 8.20 pm

Chairman Date

Page 10



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 21 NOVEMBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

Toby Newman (Chairman)

Joan Bland, Elizabeth Gillespie (substituting for David Nimmo-Smith), Lorraine Hillier, 
Elaine Hornsby, Jeannette Matelot, Ian Snowdon and David Turner

Apologies:

Anthony Dearlove, Mocky Khan, David Nimmo-Smith and Ian White tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Joan Desmond, Matt Gulliford, Nicola Meurer, Marc Pullen, Cathie Scotting and Tom 
Wyatt

Also present: 

Jason Sherwood, Locality, Infrastructure and Road Agreements Manager for Oxfordshire 
County Council.

135 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

136 Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2018 as a correct 
record and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

137 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

138 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Public Document Pack

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



2

139 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

140 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

141 P18/S2617/FUL - Land to the West of Wallingford (Site B) 

The committee considered application P18/S2617/FUL for ancillary highway works to 
include bank re-profiling and consequential tree-landscape removal along Calvin Thomas 
Way on land west of Wallingford (site B) to deliver the access approved for planning 
permission P14/S2860/O.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Matt Gulliford, Tree Officer for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
and Jason Sherwood, Locality, Infrastructure and Road Agreements Manager for 
Oxfordshire County Council were present to answer technical questions.

Adrian Lloyd, a representative of Wallingford Town Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Ashley Kensington, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Elaine Hornsby, one of the local ward councillors, spoke to the application.  

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 Although it would be possible to have low level planting on the central reservation 

from a highways perspective, there would be a maintenance issue and the potential 
for disturbance to traffic flow.

 The tree officer has assessed the application as a whole and although he would 
have preferred trees to be planted on the central reservation, has accepted the 
highways technical views. The mitigation elsewhere on site is satisfactory.

 The requested roundabout proposal would potentially cause more issues regarding 
traffic flow maintenance and air quality.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S2617/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement two years - implement with P14/S2860/O.
2. Approved plans.
3. Tree protection (general).
4. Landscape implementation.
5. Landscape maintenance and management plan.
6. Highway works (implementation as approved).

Page 12



3

142 P18/S1853/RM - Land East of Chalgrove 

The committee considered application P18/S1853/RM to erect 120 residential dwellings 
with associated parking, open space, play areas (including equipped play space), 
landscaping and works on land east of Chalgrove.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Ann Pritchard, a representative of Chalgrove Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Jacky Nabb spoke objecting to the application.  

Rob Collett, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

David Turner, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.  

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1853/RM, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Development in accordance with approved plans.
2. No garage conversion into accommodation.
3. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained.
4. Roads and footpaths prior to occupation.

143 P18/S2953/O - The Beeches, Woodperry Road, Beckley 

The committee considered outline application P18/S2953/O for one detached dwelling 
house at The Beeches, Woodperry Road, Beckley.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Ginette Camps-Walsh, a representative of Beckley and Stowood Parish Council, spoke in 
support of the application.  

Ann Cresswell, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

John Walsh, the local ward councillor, spoke in support of the application.  

Some committee members were not satisfied that they had sufficient visual evidence to 
assess the application and were minded to defer the application to allow for a site visit. 
Other members were of the view that the application did not constitute infill in relation to 
planning policy and that the protection of the green belt was of primary importance.

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application to allow for a site visit was 
declared lost on being put to the vote.

Page 13



4

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P18/S2953/O, for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposal would be inappropriate development in the green belt
which according to the National Planning Policy Framework is, by
definition harmful to the openness of the green belt and substantial
weight has to be given to that harm. No very special circumstances
have been provided with this application which would outweigh this
harm. As such it is not acceptable in principle and is contrary to
advice set out in the Framework.

2. The Development Plan identifies appropriate locations for new
dwellings in the district. New dwellings within the Green Belt will not
be allowed unless the development falls within strictly defined criteria.
Beckley is one of the villages within the district where the principle of
infill development is acceptable. However, the site lies outside the
village of Beckley in an isolated scatter of development. The site does
not constitute infill development and is therefore considered as
inappropriate development to the detriment of the openness and
visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt. As such, the proposal is
contrary to policies CSR1 and CSEN2 of the South Oxfordshire Core
Strategy 2027, Policy GB4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan and the
guidance set out within the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.

3. The proposed development would be harmful to the rural character
and appearance of the area in conflict with Policy CSEN1 of the South
Oxfordshire Core Strategy, 2012, and saved policies C4, G2 and G4 of
the South Oxfordshire Local Plan, 2011.

144 P18/S1259/FUL - 10 Hill Road (The Rectory), Watlington 

The committee considered application P18/S1259/FUL to erect a detached, two-storey 
dwelling with associated parking and landscaping at 10 Hill Road (The Rectory), 
Watlington.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Jeremy Flawn, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1259/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Sample materials (walls and roof) to be agreed prior to their use.
4. New vehicular access to Oxfordshire County Council specification to be provided 

prior to first occupation.
5. Pedestrian vision splays to be provided prior to first occupation.

Page 14



5

6. Vehicular vision splays to be provided in accordance with plan.
7. Turning area and car parking to be provided prior to first occupation.
8. No garage conversion into accommodation.
9. Landscaping scheme to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
10.Tree protection details to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
11.Details of surface water drainage works to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
12.Details of foul drainage works to be agreed prior to commencement of

development.

Informatives:
 No surface water drainage onto highway.
 Development is liable for Community Infrastructure Levy.

145 P18/S2377/FUL & P18/S2378/LB - Annexe, Crowsley Park Farm, 
Crowsley 

The committee considered applications P18/S2377/FUL and P18/S2378/LB for the 
retention of Crowsley Park Farmhouse Annexe as an independent residential dwelling and 
for associated alterations to the building at Crowsley Park Farm, Crowsley.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Elisabeth Ransom, a representative of Binfield Heath Parish Council, spoke objecting to 
the application.  

John Knox and Jane Chunilal spoke objecting to the application.  

Peter Brampton, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Committee members highlighted concerns that the converted residential dwelling would be 
harmful to the setting of the Grade II listed building and would have a detrimental impact 
on the neighbours’ amenity. Members were of the view that the property should remain 
ancillary.

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the planning application was declared carried 
on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P18/S2377/FUL for the 
following reasons:

1. Due to the close proximity to neighbouring properties, the use of the outbuilding as 
an independent dwelling would result in increased noise and general disturbance to 
the detriment of the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.  As such the proposed 
development conflicts with the provisions of saved Policies E8, EP2 and D4 of the 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan.

 
2. The proposed development would result in the physical and functional separation of 

the outbuilding from the grade II listed, Crowsley Park Farm to form two individual 
planning units.  This would adversely impact upon the historic integrity and setting 
of Crowsley Park Farm.  As such the proposed development conflicts with the 
provisions of Policy CSEN3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and saved 

Page 15



6

Policies CON4 and CON5 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan and the guidance 
and policy set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

A motion, moved and seconded to approve the listed building consent was declared 
carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant listed building consent for application P18/S2378/LB, subject to the 
following condition:

1. Approved plans (listed building).

146 P18/S2504/FUL - 15 Hocketts Close, Whitchurch Hill 

The committee considered application P18/S2504/FUL to divide the existing residence into 
two separate dwellings at 15 Hocketts Close, Whitchurch Hill.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S2504/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Development to be in place in accordance with the approved plans.
2. Withdrawal of permitted development rights to extend the property (Part 1 Class A).
3. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for outbuildings (Part 1 Class E).
4. The parking & manoeuvring areas as shown on plan to be retained as

such and not obstructed other than the parking of a private vehicle.
5. The garage accommodation shall not be converted into living accommodation 

without first obtaining prior permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

The meeting closed at 8.40 pm

Chairman Date

Page 16



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

1

APPLICATION NO. P17/S4415/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 19.12.2017
PARISH GREAT HASELEY
WARD MEMBER(S) Caroline Newton
APPLICANT Thame Farmers Auction Mart Ltd
SITE Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane (near 

Moreton and Thame)

PROPOSAL Relocation of Thame Livestock Market with buildings to 
accommodate agricultural sales, lairage, administrative 
offices, welfare facilities, business units, and associated 
external works to include highway access, roadways, 
vehicle parking, vehicle washing and other ancillary works

(as amplified by highways information received 25 April 
2018, and ecological information received 9 August 2018, 
and additional drainage and highways information 
received 27 September 2018, and additional highways 
information received 26 November 2018)

OFFICER Katherine Canavan

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application has been referred to Planning Committee at the Development 

Manager’s discretion, in light of the level of local interest, and the longstanding 
significance of the market within the district. 

1.2 The application site is located within the parish of Great Haseley, and within 1km of 
the village of Moreton and the town of Thame. A site plan is attached at Appendix 1. 

The site is undeveloped and 
located outside the built 
limits of Moreton or Thame. 
The parish boundaries of 
Tetsworth and Tiddington 
are also located close to the 
site. 

To the east of the site, 
separated by an 
undeveloped area of 
agricultural land, is an 
industrial estate measuring 
6.7ha. The site is accessed 
off Rycote Lane (A329); a 
50mph rural road running 
between Thame and 
junction 7 of the M40.

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S4415/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

2

1.3 Area designations and site constraints:
 The site is not located within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty or within the 

Oxford Green Belt or within a conservation area
 The site is not within a flood risk area and is therefore classified at Flood Zone 1.
 Area of archaeological interest: The North Weston Deserted Medieval Village 

with site of Pre-Reformation Chapel is located to the west of the site
 Listed building – The grade II listed building and outbuilding, and grade II* walled 

garden at Manor Farmhouse are located to the west of the site

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 Relocation of Thame Livestock Market with buildings to accommodate agricultural 

sales, lairage, administrative offices, welfare facilities, business units, and associated 
external works to include highway access, roadways, vehicle parking, vehicle washing 
and other ancillary works.

A detailed description of the proposal can be found in sections 4.1 – 4.15 of the Design 
and Access statement. 

An overview of how the market would operate is set out in section 3.3 and Figures 4 
and 5 of the Design and Access statement.

2.2 Motivation for proposed relocation:

Livestock markets have been held at Thame since the Middle Ages. The market was 
originally held on the High Street but moved to a purpose built facility in North Street in 
1951. 

The existing facilities in North Street are outdated in terms of equipment and buildings, 
with insufficient parking and circulation space causing traffic congestion. Much of the 
livestock penning is in the open with no protection for the animals from adverse 
weather. The layout of the site makes compliance with bio-security requirements 
difficult to implement. The current facilities are therefore a restraint on market 
operations and hence a challenge to the long-term viability of the market in the 
changing agricultural economy of the twenty-first century.

The new development is proposed to be located on the edge of Thame and will provide 
sufficient space for a new ‘state of the art’ market and associated facilities that will have 
good links to the national road network. It will act as a hub for the farming community 
providing a range of services and help to sustain a robust and diverse agricultural 
economy in the region. Animal welfare and the safety of users have been priorities in 
developing the proposals.

A previous planning application to relocate the market to the Showground site on the 
northern edge of town was granted planning permission in 2011 (ref P11/E0622) but is 
not deliverable by the applicants.

Ref. Design and Access Statement: Introduction 1.1

2.3 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached at 
Appendices 2a-e. Full copies of the plans are available for inspection on the Council’s 
website at www.southoxon.gov.uk.

Page 18



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

3

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Consultation responses received in response to the original and revised consultations 

are summarised below. Full consultation responses are available for inspection on the 
Council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk

Great Haseley 
Parish 
Council

Support, but make the following recommendations:
 Sustainable design measures / renewable technology
 Assessment of water course between site and Thames to 

determine condition and ability to deal with increased flow 
from market particularly if foul effluent

 Condition that the grass lairage between building and 
Rycote Lane cannot be used for any other purpose

 Shuttle bus between site and Thame on market days
 That vehicles leaving the site are prohibited from turning 

right to alleviate potential traffic build-up.

Thame Town 
Council

The application falls outside the parish of Thame the Town Council 
– the following comments have been put forward:

 Highway safety concerns, in relation to junction with 
Moreton Road and the entrance to Manor Farm

 The Road Safety Audit sets out that 50 vehicles could be 
expected over a 4 hour period on market dates, equating to 
2 vehicle per minute. 

 Current experience shows that vehicles tend to arrive at the 
market in clusters, causing queues on the local road 
network

 Concern raised that, in reality, market traffic is likely to 
queue back beyond the ghost island.

Moreton 
Residents 
Association

Broadly in support of the Cattle Market but have concerns over the 
site:

 Unplanned development, with no policy backing in the 
Thame Neighbourhood Plan or the District Local Plan

 Insufficient consideration around drainage of effluent from 
the site

 Increased traffic as a result of proposed commercial units 
outside market days

 The Accident and Traffic Survey only reflects a small section 
of A329. The A329 is a dangerous road, with blind bends 
and the scene of 2-3 accidents per year.

 Lorries currently back-up from the established industrial 
area.

 Consideration needs to be given to lighting to avoid further 
light pollution caused by the industrial estate.

Technical advisors:

Conservation 
Officer 

No objection
 Satisfied that proposal has appropriately considered the 

impact on heritage assets and there would be no impact on 
them. 

Page 19



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

4

Countryside 
Officer 

No objection
 Existing habitat mainly dominated by arable field of low 

ecological value. 
 Main impact on proposal is loss of roadside hedgerow and 

one mature oak tree – to be replaced elsewhere on-site. 
 No protected species on site. However, a meta-population 

of great crested newts (GCN) has been recorded in ponds 
on the nearby golf course. 

 The biodiversity calculations indicate the scheme could 
deliver a net gain for biodiversity. 

 No objections on the basis of ecology, as long as a number 
of conditions are met in order to protect the GCNs – through 
the district GCN licence scheme.

Holding objection
 Further information required on flood storage calculations 

and discharge of surface water

Drainage 
Engineer

No objection
 The additional information has overcome previous 

concerns
 Additional information provided in the Rolton Group 

Limited Flood Risk Report Vol 2, and Rolton Group 
Limited Foul and Effluent strategy Vol 3

 Surface and foul water conditions recommended
Economic 
Development 
Officer

Support
 Present site is no longer suitable for needs and therefore 

the new site is essential. 
 Due to unique nature of livestock this site is the only suitable 

site.
 The livestock market brings significant economic benefit and 

should be retained within the Thame area. 
 Support the inclusion of an “agri-centre” as part of the 

development.

Forestry Officer No strong views
 Trees on the site and northern side of A329 are not of 

significant arboricultural merit, and replacement planting is 
proposes for the trees being removed.

 Clarification required as to whether the highway works 
would affect important trees on the southern side of A329. 

No strong views
 Clarification received that the trees on the southern side 

would not be affected.

Health & 
Housing – 
Environmental  
Protection Team

No strong views

Holding objection
 Insufficient information provided to demonstrate that visibility 

splays and sufficient length of ghost island can be 
implemented and retained. 

Highways 
Officer 
(Oxfordshire 
County Council)

No strong views

Page 20



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

5

 Additional information received which addresses previous 
concerns – Access works to be secured through s278 
agreement.

Landscape 
Consultant on 
behalf of SODC 

 Some impact on the landscape identified – the Landscape 
Visual Impact Assessment relies heavily on providing an 
appropriate landscaping scheme to mitigate the impact.

 By developing on a previously undeveloped site, there 
would be encroachment into the countryside. The 
acceptability or otherwise of the proposals in landscape 
terms depends on the relationship between harm and 
enhancement, which is essentially a matter of judgement.

Landscape 
Officer

Holding objection 
 The development would introduce an intensive farm-related 

use into the countryside, which will be more compatible with 
the rural setting if the building and site design details relate 
well to the landscape character of the area. 

 The site layout utilises the available site area extremely well, 
with little room to spare. The site uses are logical and well 
thought out, which should help the site function well.

 The building’s design is driven by function and more could 
be done to ensure that it will sit well visually within the larger 
area.

 The following conditions are recommended: 
schedule of materials to integrate the building more 
effectively into the landscape; details of landscaping 
scheme; details of lighting across the scheme

Public Arts 
Officer

No objections
 The type of development triggers the need for an on-site 

public art scheme – to be drawn up in conjunction with the 
Public Art Officer.

Public Rights of 
Way Officer

No strong views

Objections from interested parties are summarised as follows:

Traffic congestion 
and highway 
safety

 The proposal would result in increased traffic movement 
along the A329, including heavy lorries, vans and cars. The 
A329 is already a busy, dangerous road with a number of 
dangerous bends.   

 The width of the A329 reduces in places making it difficult 
for large lorries traveling in opposite directions to pass.

 Particular attention should be given to the safety of traffic 
accessing and egressing the proposed site, turning right 
onto the A329 and the effect on the junction to Moreton 
village which is on a bend not far from the entrance to 
Gregory's site.

 The traffic density at busy times can make it difficult to turn 
out of the village road – an additional large-scale business 
on the road will only exacerbate the problem.

Page 21



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6

 The traffic assessment does not factor in the commercial 
growth of the site and increased traders over time.

 Concern over lack of parking and risk over verges becoming 
cluttered with vehicles

Drainage  Insufficient clarification from Thames Water as to whether 
the applicants can discharge water through sewer - Abbey 
Farm is already full of water from Rycote Industrial Estate.

 Details of future maintenance and management of SUDS 
features should be provided.

 A second ditch to accommodate more water would be 
needed at the very least to allow more water to flow through.

Assessment of 
alternative sites

 Others sites should be given greater scrutiny, particularly as 
the majority of traffic accesses the market form the north of 
Thame, so a northern or eastern site would be most 
appropriate

 There are other sites with much better road access.

Lighting  Light pollution is already an issue from the existing industrial 
units on Rycote Lane. The development will result in 
increased light and noise pollution in a rural location, 
particularly impacting on Moreton.

Landscaping  Effective integration is dependent on the retention and 
maintenance of screening along the front boundary – this is 
lacking in nearby developments and should not be 
overlooked. 

 Poor maintenance of willows on Northern Boundary - The 
willows should undergo pollarding as they are regularly 
splitting and falling over.

Continued 
expansion

 There is a risk of gradual expansion over time, and the 
addition of other types of markets, the impact of which 
haven’t been assessed under the application. 

 Risk of the commercial units being units on a day-to-day 
basis, separate from the market, thereby introducing greater 
traffic impact.

Thame Market 
Charter

 Implications of moving the market from Thame to Great 
Haseley in respect of the Market Charter.

 I believe that Thame's market charter specifically prohibits 
the establishment of a market outside of the town.

Comments of support from interested parties are summarised as follows:

Connectivity and 
accessibility

 Well located out of town and close to the M40
 Moving to the outskirts of town is logical and will free up 

space and parking in the centre.
 The current site is no longer fit for purpose and this site is a 

viable alternative whilst close to the town for visitors.

Retention of 
livestock market

 The market has a good reputation and should be looked 
after – it puts Thame on the map.

Page 22



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

7

 It is imperative that a viable market is kept for the 
agricultural community and future generations, not only as 
an agricultural and commercial facility to be preserved, but 
also allowed to flourish.

 The market plays an important role in establishing a fair 
price for the stock we buy and sell.

 In a competitive national / international market, it provides a 
hub for the sharing of farming knowledge and to discuss 
approaches to maintain resilience in the market

 As buyers and vendors, our family have been trading at the 
market for decades 

 Retention of the historic presence of the market in the local 
area – it is a key part of the rural farming community in this 
area.

 There is an urgent need for relocation of the market, 
particularly as the approved site has delivered.

Design and 
landscaping

 The site appears carefully and sensitively designed with a 
grass and hedge buffer between the buildings and the A329.

 The new site would be purpose-built to overcome existing 
issues, such as space to accommodate increasing numbers 
of livestock farmers visiting the market, space to park cattle 
trucks, washing facilities, scope for turning, stock handling 
capabilities.

Economic 
benefits

 The market brings with it economic benefits to the area 
 A new agri-centre would enhance the locality whilst 

supporting the farming industry.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 P18/S0084/FUL  Land South of Rycote Lane THAME OX9 2HH
Closure of existing access on to Rycote Lane and formation of new access together 
with access track
Planning Permission on 30th May 2018

P17/S4441/O  Land north of Rycote Lane near Thame OX9 2BY
The erection of up to 180,000 square feet (up to 16,722 square metres) of B2/B8 with 
ancillary B1(a) and B1(c) together with parking, drainage, landscaping (structural and 
incidental) and highway works
Under consideration – yet to be determined

P11/E1037/EX    Land at Thame Showground, Thame OX9 3JL
Extension of time for implementation to planning permission P07/E0597/O (Relocation 
of Thame Cattle Market & associated buildings, car parking, new access and ancillary 
activities)
Planning Permission on 9th September 2011

P11/E0622   Land at Thame Showground, Thame OX9 3JL
Relocation of Thame Cattle Market, with associated buildings, parking, access and 
ancillary activities. (As amplified by plans accompanying email from agent dated 25 
October 2011).
Planning Permission on 12th December 2011

Page 23



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

8

P07/E1400/O   Land at Thame Showground, Thame OX9 3JL
Relocation of Thame cattle market & development of a new single storey cattle market, 
car parking, new access and ancillary activities. (As amplified by traffic report which 
accompanied the letter from the agent dated 11 December 2007).
Refusal of Outline Planning Permission on 23rd January 2008

P07/E0597/O   Land at Thame Showground, Thame OX9 3JL
Relocation of Thame Cattle Market & associated buildings, car parking, new access 
and ancillary activites. (As amplified by plan accompanying letter from Agent dated 18 
July 2007).
Appeal Allowed on 24 June 2008

P06/E0896/O   Land at Thame Showground, Thame OX9 3JL
Relocation of The Thame Cattle Market and associated buildings, development of an 
agricultural business centre, car parking and new access.
Withdrawn prior to determination 

[Series of applications between 1950 and 2010 to expand cattle market]

P49/M0029   North Street THAME
New cattle market
Planning Permission on 18th January 1949

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies 2027 (Adopted 2012) 

CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSS1 - Overall strategy
CSB1 -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSEM1 -  Supporting a successful economy 
CSEM2 -  The amount and distribution of employment 
CSEM4 -  Supporting economic development
CSM2 - Transport Assessment
CSM2 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
CSEN1 - Landscape
CSEN3 - Historic environment
CSQ2 - Sustainable Design and Construction
CSQ3 -  Design
CSR2 -  Employment in rural areas
CSG1 - Green infrastructure
CSB1 - Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSI1 - Infrastructure provision

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan saved policies (2011)
 
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G3 -  Traffic generation in rural locations
G4 -  Safeguarding of the countryside
C4 - Safeguarding the landscaping setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
CON5  -  Setting of a listed building

Page 24



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

9

EP1  -  Adverse affect on people and environment
EP2  -  Noise and vibrations
EP3  -  Floodlighting
EP4  -  Impact on water resources
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
EP7 -  Surface and ground water protection
EP8 - Contaminated land
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D7  -  Access to public buildings
D10  -  Waste management
D12  -  Public art contribution
E5  -  Business Use
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users
TC7 - Shops and town centre uses
THA1  - Thame Cattle Market
SOLP, Appendix 5 - Parking and cycle standards

5.3 Neighbourhood Plan policies - Neighbourhood Development Plan Policies

Great Haseley Parish are not currently preparing a neighbourhood plan; the site is not 
located within an neighbourhood plan area.

The Thame Neighbourhood Plan (relating to the adjacent settlement) was formally 
made part of the council's development plan by South Oxfordshire District Council on 
18 July 2013. The following policy is relevant to the current proposal, and is considered 
in section 6.4 of the report:

WS14: Redevelop the Cattle Market site for mixed-use

5.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)
South Oxfordshire District Council’s Corporate Plan for 2016 to 2020

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The key planning considerations in determining the application are:

 Principle of development
 Weight afforded to economic and community benefits
 Sustainability, highways and transport 
 Environmental impact and residential amenity
 Impact on rural setting, and design
 Ecological impact and biodiversity
 Historic environment
 Financial contributions and legal agreements
 Environmental Impact Assessment

6.2 Principle of development
6.2i The National Framework and Development Plan policies steer development towards 

towns, larger villages and sustainable locations in the first instance, with limited 

Page 25



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

10

development being appropriate in the smaller villages. Outside of settlements, 
development will only be appropriate where it meets very specific needs. 

As set out in policy CSS1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy:
Outside the towns and villages, and other major developed sites, any change will need 
to relate to very specific needs such as those of the agricultural industry or 
enhancement of the environment. 

Policy CSR2 of the SOCS allows for:
Proposals which support the economy of the rural areas through: 

 schemes which support agricultural production and the retention of functioning 
farm units; and 

 schemes which support tourism based on the character of the area.

Paragraph 84 of the revised NPPF clarifies that: 
Planning policies and decisions should recognise that sites to meet local business and 
community needs in rural areas may have to be found adjacent to or beyond existing 
settlements, and in locations that are not well served by public transport. In these 
circumstances it will be important to ensure that development is sensitive to its 
surroundings, does not have an unacceptable impact on local roads and exploits any 
opportunities to make a location more sustainable (for example by improving the 
scope for access on foot, by cycling or by public transport). The use of previously 
developed land, and sites that are physically well-related to existing settlements, 
should be encouraged where suitable opportunities exist. 

6.2ii While the site is located outside any settlement, and in an area that would not usually 
accommodate development of this scale, there are material planning considerations 
which afford great weight to the proposal, subject to meeting other Development Plan 
policies. 

 The proposal continues a long-established and important agricultural and 
business function for the district, and serving areas further afield, and meets a 
specific agricultural need, which would in all likelihood be lost from the district if 
the market could not be relocated. 

 The revised NPPF recognises that there may be instances where development 
proposals in rural areas may need to be located outside settlements in order to 
meet specific business and community needs – this is the case with the current 
proposal. 

 There are strong economic reasons to support the relocation of the livestock 
market, which are considered in greater detail in section 6.3.  

6.3 Weight afforded to economic and community benefits

6.3i Consideration of alternative sites
In considering the economic and community benefits brought forward by the proposal, 
advice was sought from the council’s Economic Development Team, summarised as 
follows:

 In 2011, permission was granted for the relocation of the livestock market to 
the Thame Showground site, under permission P11/E0622. This application 
recognised the importance of the cattle market to the town of Thame and the 
surrounding area and the need to find a suitable site for relocation from their 
existing town centre site which is no longer fit for purpose in terms of modern 
operational needs. 

 Thame Farmers Auction Mart (TFAM) have tried unsuccessfully for a number 
of years to move discussions forward with the landowner and lessee of the 

Page 26



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

11

approved site to enable delivery. The economic development team has tried to 
support these discussions but they have not come to fruition.  As such, with 
limited time remaining on their existing lease and pressure for new facilities, 
TFAM undertook an exhaustive review of alternative locations both around 
Thame and outside the district.

 The unique nature of a livestock market means that it has particular needs and 
requirements for its site and as such this is the only suitable site that is viable 
for the livestock market to develop at this time.

A key element in considering a proposal outside the built limits of Thame was to 
ensure there were no other suitable sites, and to understand why the proposed site 
was well suited to meeting the specific requirements attached to the livestock market 
operation.

A detailed options appraisal was submitted with the application, titled ‘Design & 
Access Statement Appendix A’. The conclusions of the appraisal were:

 The brownfield sites assessed and available in Thame are not affordable, and 
other greenfield sites assessed are either not deliverable and/or not affordable, 
eg. Safeguarded for residential expansion, at risk of flooding, would result in 
environmental disturbance to nearby residents;

 The preferred site is of an appropriate scale to deliver a tailored layout and 
building design to overcome the issues currently experienced with the market 
site that has evolved over time;

 The highways network could accommodate safe traffic flow to the site, subject 
to access improvements;

 The site is within appropriate distance of Thame in order to provide economic
benefit whilst not impacting on existing development in terms of noise, traffic, 
odours etc.

 TFAM have approached a land owner willing to negotiate and agreed an option 
to purchase agreement – the site is therefore available and deliverable;

 There is local support for the principle of relocating the market, and the 
importance of keeping the market close to Thame is recognised;

 The relocation of TFAM to the preferred site will allow the redevelopment of the 
town market site to be redeveloped, in accordance with policies WS14 and 
WS15 of the Thame Neighbourhood Plan.

On the basis that a range of sites have been assessed and ruled out on sound 
grounds, there is scope to consider the application site, rather than insisting on an 
alternative site elsewhere in Thame. It is accepted that the approved site is very 
unlikely to come forward to the point of delivery (since approval in 2011), and to insist 
on alternative options that are not deliverable would not be reasonable. It would also 
prolong and put at risk the ambition to relocate the market in the local area. That being 
said, the principle of development on the site in planning terms, and the detail of the 
proposal, must still accord with Development Plan policies in order to be accepted as a 
policy compliant scheme.

6.3ii Economic considerations
The assessment carried out by the Economic Development Officers, and the 
supporting documents provided as part of the application process, identify the 
livestock market, as a key asset to the area, which provides significant economic 
benefit. The retention in the local area, and the relocation to a tailored site design 
contributes positively to the agricultural and business needs of the district.

 The livestock market brings significant economic benefit to the town and 
surrounding area and as such it is important that it is retained within South 

Page 27



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

12

Oxfordshire and indeed in the Thame area. The market covers a wide 
catchment comprising Oxfordshire, Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Bedfordshire 
and Hertfordshire, all with significant proportions of grazing and mixed cropping 
land holdings. Without a market in this area, there is a wide reaching 
agricultural community that would suffer from the lack of a regular livestock 
marketing facility.

 Currently the market employs 13 staff (8 full time) and this is expected to grow 
with the new development.  The inclusion of a small “agricentre” as part of the 
development is supported as it will provide associated supply-chain SME 
agricultural businesses with the opportunity to strengthen links with the cattle 
market and bring additional employment to the area.

As identified on dwgno AL(p)02 the site layout also includes two commercial units and 
two smaller commercial kiosks. The justification for this is to support the viability of the 
market on the site. 

Policy TC7 states that:
Proposals for shops and other key town centre uses that attract many people will not 
be permitted in locations outside the town centre boundaries shown on the Proposals 
Map.

The key intention behind this policy is to avoid new retail centres away from 
established town centre areas, which would then draw consumers away from the high 
street and risk diluting the viability and vitality of town centres. In this instance the 
commercial units must strictly be used for commercial purposes associated with the 
livestock market and represent a supporting role to the market. This could include 
agricultural insurance, financial services, legal advice or the sale of agricultural goods 
and a retail use selling agricultural products. 

Subject to the appropriate restrictions, the units are seen to provide economic benefit, 
rather than competition to the town centre, but are only acceptable in planning terms 
because of their tie to the livestock market use of the site. A condition is required to 
restrict the uses that can be accommodated in these units (A1 – shops, A2 – 
professional services, with no greater floorspace than indicated on dwgno AL(p)02, 
and directly connected to the agricultural purposes of the livestock market), but also to 
secure the detail (and any advertising) of the commercial units, once traders are 
known. 

6.3iii Implications of loss of livestock market from town centre
In light of the longstanding presence of the livestock market in Thame, consideration 
must be given to the impact of the loss on the site and the impact on the local 
community. 

The market moved to the site in the 1950s, and over time has seen a number of 
expansion projects on the site itself, and changes in how the agricultural community, 
and users of the town, access the market. In response to this, there are sound reasons 
for a new site to be considered, particularly if there is the opportunity for a purpose-
built market and supporting services. A site outside the town centre also provides 
opportunities for improved access, and the reduction of congestion on market days. 

Redevelopment of the site is reinforced through local policy and the council’s 
aspirations for the district in the form of the saved Local Plan policy THA1:
Proposals for mixed-use development at the Cattle Market, North Street, Thame will 
only be permitted where that development comprises part of a comprehensive scheme 
for the site […]

Page 28



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

13

And policy WS14 in the Thame Neighbourhood Plan:
Proposals for mixed-use development at the Cattle Market, (as defined in Figure 8.7 
below) will be permitted provided that the principal use on the site is for retail.

South Oxfordshire District Council’s Corporate Plan for 2016 to 2020 has as an 
objective to support ‘Thame Farmers Auction Mart to relocate to an alternative site 
within the district thereby freeing up the Thame cattle market for redevelopment’.

The proposal for the loss of the site is dependent on a replacement site being found, 
so the livestock market is secured locally and as a key community and economic hub 
within South Oxfordshire. The current application puts forward a site for a replacement 
livestock market, thereby achieving this objective, and would release the North Street 
site for redevelopment, in line with planning policy. In these respects the proposal 
remains in conformity with the Development Plan. 

6.3iv For the reasons considered above, great weight should be afforded to the economic 
benefits provided by the livestock market. The development conforms with national 
and local policy as it constitutes of a type of development whose particular business 
and agricultural needs could be specifically met by development of the site for an 
established livestock market. Local policy supports the relocation of the livestock 
market away from the town centre of Thame, and there are further benefits to the 
agricultural community in bringing forward a site that can accommodate a tailor-made 
site layout and small-scale commercial units to boost the primary use as a livestock 
market. This approach has been underpinned by an options appraisal of nearby sites 
in and around Thame, and provides sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the Rycote 
Lane site is the most viable option, in terms of delivering a fit-for-purpose livestock 
market.

6.4 Detailed assessment of the proposal
6.4i Policy E5 of the SOLP identifies the specific requirements associated with proposals 

for business, industry, warehousing and storage:

[Developments of this type] will not be permitted which:
(i) conflict with the policies in the plan to protect the Green Belt and the countryside;
The site is not located within the Green Belt and the development’s impact and 
integration with the countryside is addressed in section 6.7.

(ii) conflict with the policies in the plan to protect the built environment and to retain 
recreational uses and essential community facilities and services in accordance with 
Policies CF1 and CF3;
N/A

(iii) are of a scale and type of development inappropriate to the proposed site and its 
surroundings;
While a development of this scale would not usually be accommodated in a rural 
setting, section 6.3 sets out the specific needs and justification for why the principle of 
development is acceptable. The detail, in relation to its surrounded, is considered in 
section 6.7.

(iv) are not in keeping with the surrounding area in terms of design, layout and 
materials.  Where appropriate, the site must be suitably landscaped, in accordance 
with Policies D1 and C1.  In new developments the Council will normally require at 
least one-tenth of the gross developable area to be set aside for landscaping;
Also addressed in section 6.7.

Page 29



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

14

A detailed landscaping scheme is required by condition to ensure the building and 
associated parking areas integrate into the open countryside setting.

(v) have inadequate access and car and lorry parking and manoeuvring facilities 
and/or would cause problems on the wider road network in accordance with Policies 
D2 and T1 to T3;
Addressed in section 6.5. 

(vi) where appropriate, are in locations which are not accessible by public transport in 
accordance with Policy T2; 
Addressed in section 6.5.

and/or
(vii) cause problems as a result of noise, smell, dust, loss of privacy or cause any 
other environmental problems in accordance with Policies EP1 to EP9.
Addressed in section 6.6

6.5 Sustainability, highways and transport
6.5i Policy T1 of the SOLP requires that developments provide for: 

 a safe and convenient access to the highway network; 
 be accessible by public transport and have a safe walking route to nearby bus 

stops (or new bus stops and appropriate infrastructure should be provided); 
 and be served by an adequate road network which can accommodate traffic 

without creating traffic hazards or damage to the environment.

6.5ii The site is accessed off Rycote Lane (A329); a 50mph rural road running between 
Thame and junction 7 of the M40. The site is outside any built settlement but is located 
within 1km of both Moreton and Thame.

An initial assessment by the county Highways Officer identified concerns over the 
location, in terms of its sustainability, and also in the practical implementation of 
visibility splays and the ghost island.

In policy terms there are material planning considerations to offset the concerns over 
the sustainability of the site, and benefits in locating the livestock market out of the 
town centre. It is noted that the revised Framework definition of sustainability 
considers economic, environmental and social factors, and it has been demonstrated 
that the livestock market would contribute positively to these in a number of ways.

Further to the receipt of additional highways information, there is sufficient detail to 
demonstrate that the development would not impact on the wider network or highway 
safety. A small portion of land has been acquired to demonstrate the required visibility 
splays can be implemented and retained in perpetuity. Sufficient on-site parking and 
waiting space for large vehicles (in the form of a 3-lorry ghost island) has been 
designed into the scheme and is to be secured by condition and legal agreement. On 
this basis the county Highways Officer has no objection to the scheme on highways 
grounds.

Note: Application P18/S0084/FUL to close up and relate a field gate on the opposite 
side of Rycote Lane has been considered by the county Highways Officers, and does 
not conflict with the livestock market access arrangements or introduce highway safety 
concerns.  

Page 30



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

15

6.5iii Public Transport 
Paragraph 84 of the revised NPPF (July 2018) recognises that there may be instances 
where development proposals in rural areas may need to be located outside 
settlements in order to meet specific business and community needs, and may not 
necessarily be well connected by public transport. 

Given the nature of the livestock market, where the majority of users are transporting 
livestock to and from the site, and that the site is less than 1km from Thame, and that 
the market only operates 1-2 times a week, the number of users of public transport to 
reach the site is not sufficiently great to insist on the introduction of a new service, and 
the lack of service is not a strong enough reason to weigh negatively against the 
proposal.

6.6 Environmental impact and residential amenity
6.6i Policies EP1 – EP8 of the SOLP are concerned with the management of 

environmental factors and the safeguarding of the amenity of nearby occupants. 
Specific considerations include impact as a result of the development, or the 
construction process, which give rise to: noise, air quality, light spill, dust, odour or risk 
of contamination, or require careful management of surface / foul water.

6.6ii Effective odour control and waste management will be particularly important in terms 
of the proposed use of the site. While the council’s environmental Health Team have 
raised no concerns, it is necessary to note that there is strict legislation oustdie the 
planning system that controls the environmental management of such uses - The 
Animal Welfare Act 2006, The Welfare of Animals at Markets Order (1990) and its 
amendments, Animal Gatherings Order 2010 (No. 460), The Welfare of Animals 
(Transport) Order 2006, The Transport of Animals (Cleansing and Disinfection) Order. 
For this reason, the appropriate measures for monitoring and compliance of such a 
specialist use are more appropriately regulated by Defra, The Environment Agency 
and The Animal and Plant Health Agency.   

6.6iii In terms of noise management, the nearest dwellings are 250m from the livestock 
building and the proposed site is located in a significantly less noise sensitive area 
than the existing unenclosed market site in the centre of the town.

6.6iv Given the scale of the proposal on a greenfield site, drainage of the site is an 
important consideration, even though the site is not within a flood risk area. Further to 
the receipt of additional site testing data, the council’s Drainage Engineer is satisfied 
that the development in its proposed form can be accommodated on the site without 
impacting on neighbouring sites or the wider drainage system. 

This is subject to the submission of a detailed surface water drainage design, and 
soakage testing, (in conformity with the Rolton Group Limited Flood Risk Report Vol 
2), and a detailed foul water drainage design (in conformity with the Rolton Group 
Limited Foul and Effluent strategy Vol 3), and a detailed SuDs scheme, to be secured 
by condition. These measures will need to be in place and functioning prior to the first 
use of the site.

6.7 Impact on rural setting, and design
6.7i Policy CSEN1 of the SOCS states that:

The district’s distinct landscape character and key features will be protected against 
inappropriate development and where possible enhanced. 
(i) Where development is acceptable in principle, measures will be sought to integrate 
it into the landscape character of the area.

Page 31



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

16

The site is currently greenfield land, with open countryside to the north, south and 
west. Beyond the field to the east, which is currently under consideration for 
commercial development, is an industrial estate on the outskirts of Thame. While there 
are no landscape designations, such as AONB or Green Belt, the site is largely 
characterised by its rural setting, and is 1km from the nearest settlements. 

Both the council’s Landscape Officer and the Landscape Consultant acting on behalf 
of the council raised concerns over the potential impact of the livestock market on the 
rural landscape setting, and the risk of encroachment into the countryside. Their 
conclusions highlighted the need to make a careful judgement on whether the 
introduction of the livestock market would bring sufficient benefit and enhancement to 
offset development in landscaping terms. Having considered the planning merits as a 
whole, there are material planning benefits set out in section 6.2 and 6.3 of the report, 
that demonstrate why the principle of development on the site is acceptable, but only 
in this particular case as it meets a specific need that cannot be met elsewhere in the 
local area. 

6.7ii The landscape advice also highlights the importance of creating a site that is well-
designed, and buildings that are well-finished, to create an identity, rather than 
providing a functional, industrial warehouse. Enhancement of the site is essential in 
the form of an effective tree, planting and landscaping scheme, to assist in 
safeguarding the rural setting. 

The topography of the site is relatively flat, but the entrance from the main road drops 
away into the site. For this reason, the low-level buildings proposed as part of the 
development are key to avoiding an overly prominent or incongruous addition into the 
landscape. 

As indicated in the 
Landscape Officer’s 
consultation response, 
the longterm integration 
of the development is 
dependent on an effective 
landscaping scheme, 
appropriate materials that 
bring interest to the 
building itself without 
jarring with the rural 

landscape setting, and a sensitive lighting scheme – to be secured by condition.

While the floorspace and use of the site is more intense than an agricultural holding, 
the introduction of agricultural buildings is appropriate to the local area. With careful 
consideration of the detail - to be secured by condition -, the development responds 
appropriately with the landscape sensitivities of its rural location.

6.7iii Sustainable Design
The parking area includes 3 Electric Vehicle Charging Points – to be secured by 
condition.

Page 32



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

17

The Design and Access Statement also confirms that a BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating will 
be achieved throughout the development – certification on the completion of the 
project is required by condition to ensure it is achieved.

6.8 Ecological impact and biodiversity
Paragraph 170 of the Revised NPPF and Policy CSB1 of the South Oxfordshire Core 
Strategy call for planning proposals to minimise impacts on biodiversity and seek to 
achieve a net gain where possible. Although there are no populations of protected 
species on the site, a large metapopulation of great crested newts (GCN) were 
recorded in ponds on the Oxfordshire Golf Course in 2010 close to the application site.

The application has been supported by additional ecological information in the form of 
a NatureSpace LPA submission report to address concerns raised regarding great 
crested newts (GCN). The countryside officer has reviewed the assessment and is 
satisfied that the impacts on GCN are adequately addressed under the district licence, 
subject to conditions.

6.9 Historic environment
While there are no heritage assets or designations on the site, to the west of the site 
are the grade II listed building and outbuilding, and grade II* walled garden at Manor 
Farmhouse. 

The conservation officer is satisfied that the applicant has appropriately considered the 
impact to designated and non-designated heritage assets in the wider site area, and 
this has been drawn through to the proposal design. For this reason, there would be 
no detrimental impact to their significance.

6.10 Financial contributions and legal agreements

6.10i Obligations

Highways works Vehicular access onto Rycote Lane (A329) with ghost 
right turn lane, to be secured by s278 agreement

Travel Plan Monitoring £2040
Public Art On-site delivery of public art scheme, in accordance with 

D12 of the SOLP and SODC ‘S106 financial contributions 
and fees’, and in conjunction with the council’s Public Art 
Officer.

I consider that these contributions / obligations accord with policy CSI1 and CSR3 of 
the SOCS, which requires new development to be supported by appropriate on and 
off-site infrastructure and services. The requirements accord with the relevant tests in 
paragraph 56 of the revised NPPF as they are necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms, are directly related to the development, and are fair and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

6.10ii Community Infrastructure Levy 
The council adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1 April 2016.  Based on 
the current Regulation 123 list, contributions towards education, health, sports / 
leisure, community and cultural facilities and general highways infrastructure would be 
collected through CIL. New-build, retail floor space is CIL liable at a rate of £79.67 per 
sqm (as per indexing figure January 2018). This specifically relates to retail 
warehouses, superstores or supermarkets that exceed 280 sqm and are classified as 
larger stores under the Sunday Trading Act 1994. 

Page 33



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

18

The two larger units, indicated as commercial units on Floor Plan Ground Proposed 
drwgno AL P 02c.pdf, fall within this category, but the two kiosk units with a much 
smaller floorspace do not. At the point the specific uses of the units are identified 
through the conditions process, CIL would be triggered for any large retail uses.

6.11 Environmental Impact Assessment
The proposed development is classified as schedule 2 development: 1(c) – Intensive 
livestock installations. The development exceeds the EIA threshold of having an area 
of development greater than 0.5ha. The local planning authority issued a screening 
opinion in December 2018 (reference P18/S3331/SCR) concluding that the 
development would not result in significant environmental impact or require an 
environmental impact assessment.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 Your officer recommends that full planning permission is granted because the 

proposed development is considered to be acceptable for the following reasons:

7.1i While the site is located outside any settlement, and in an area that would not usually 
accommodate development of this scale, there are material planning considerations 
which afford great weight to the principle of development in this location. The revised 
NPPF recognises that there may be instances where development proposals in rural 
areas may need to be located outside settlements in order to meet specific business 
and community needs. The type of development brings with it specific economic and 
community benefits, that contribute to the wider agricultural industry, and the use has 
established, historic ties with the local area.

7.1ii The location has been justified through a site options appraisal, which identifies the 
application site as being the only viable site in the local area, which is both deliverable, 
accessible and well-suited to providing a purpose built livestock market and agri-
centre. 

7.1iii Subject to a series of highways improvements to the access, sufficient highways and 
transport information has been provided to demonstrate that the introduction of a 
livestock market would not adversely affect highway safety or put pressure on the 
highway network. 

7.1iv By virtue of the low-level buildings and topography of the site, and the site layout and 
deisgn, enhanced landscaping and a sensitive lighting scheme, the development will 
effectively integrate into the rural landscape. Subject to a drainage condition to secure 
drainage measures, sufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the 
development can be accommodated in terms of surface and foul water management, 
without impacting on neighbouring sites or the wider drainage system.

7.1v On this basis, the development accords with the revised National Framework and the 
Development Plan, and officers recommend approval of the full planning permission.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
To authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission subject to:

8.1 A. The completion of the relevant legal agreements to secure:
 Highways works (S278)
 Travel Plan Monitoring (S106 or Unilateral Undertaking)
 Public Art (S106 or Unilateral Undertaking)

Page 34



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

19

8.2 B. Subject to the following conditions:  
1. Work to commence within three years.
2. In accordance with approved plans.
3. Materials schedule.
4. Details of signage.
5. Details of hard and soft landscaping.
6. Contamination survey.
7. Contamination validation report.
8. BREEAM certification report – ‘Excellent’ rating.
9. Electric vehicle charging points.
10. Provision of cycle parking and shower facilities.
11. Parking areas – SuDs compliant.
12. New vehicular access.
13. Visibility splays.
14. Travel plan.
15. Construction traffic management plan.
16. Details of surface water drainage.
17. Details of foul water drainage.
18. Sustainable drainage scheme.
19. Details of external lighting.
20. Details of public art scheme.
21. In accordance with the local planning authority’s ecological licence.
22. Certificate for great crested newt compensation (licensing requirement).
23. All works to be carried out in accordance with great crested newt mitigation 

principles (licensing requirement).
24. Commercial units – only A1 or A2 uses, no greater than the floorspace 

indicated on drawing AL(p)02, and directly connected with the agricultural 
purposes of the livestock market.

25. Prior to occupation of the commercial units, submission of details of the 
occupying business and any advertising.

26. No change of use unless through the grant of planning permission.
27. No additional floors or mezzanine floors.

 
Author: Katherine Canavan
Contact No: 01235 422600
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 37

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



16

13

21
13

14
5

vehicle wash

midden

loading/ unloading docks

effluent plant
articulated and large rigid lorry parking

tra
ile

r p
ar

ki
ng

tra
ile

r p
ar

ki
ng

rig
id

 lo
rry

 p
ar

ki
ng

m
ac

hi
na

ry
 s

al
es

 a
re

a 
/

te
m

po
ra

ry
 o

ve
rfl

ow
 p

ar
ki

ng

tra
ile

r p
ar

ki
ng

18

car parking

staff
car parking

highway access to
Highway Authority
requirements

sheep fair temporary penning
(610 pens  2.4m(8')  x 4.8m(16') on 2.5 Ac )

overflow parking 
on grass
for trailers

on
e 

w
ay

one way

on
e 

w
ay

cycle stands

Rycote Lane

loading pens during sheep fair

drainage  channel

12

7

8

4

15

13

car parking
12

7

8

4

gate &
cattle grid

gate &
cattle grid

gate &
cattle grid

10

ov
er

flo
w

 p
ar

ki
ng

 o
n 

gr
as

s

overflow parking on grass 

bi
o-

se
cu

rit
y 

fe
nc

e

bio-security 
fence

bio-security 
fence

ch
at

te
ls 

sa
le

ro
om

 m
ul

ti 
-p

ur
po

se
 h

al
l

livestock building

la
ira

ge
 b

ui
ld

in
g

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

sale ring-offices-cafe

+ 
71.50

+ 70.28

FFL 70.00

68.45
       +

68.45
+

FFL 70.00 FFL 70.00

68.725
+

68.725
         +

+
68.45

+
68.45

+
68.70

+
68.65

        +
68.85

+
68.90

gate

        +
68.90

+
 68.50

         +
 68.50

+
69.85

       +
69.85

+
69.85

68.45
       +

+
69.85

         +
69.725+

69.30

          +
69.725

69.725
          +

          +
69.875

+ 69.68 + 70.88

+
69.725 +

70.28

69.40
         +

          +
69.725

 69.00
+

 69.00
+

69.725
          +

pedestrian 
self closing 
gate

pedestrian 
self closing 
gate

               +
FFL 68.95

               +
FFL 68.70

               +
FFL 68.95

               +
FFL 68.70  68.90

+
69.05
         +

69.36
       +

+
69.15

+ 
70.99

rainwater 
storage
tank

signage

signage

ki
tc

he
n 

LP
G

 ta
nk

co
nd

en
se

r 
re

nc
lo

su
re

security fence security gates

grass lairage
grass lairage

T1

T2

G1 G2

G3

G4

G5

G6

support business support business

landscape/ mounding and  hedging strip

mounding and hedging mounding and hedging

landscape/ mounding and  hedging strip

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
sc

re
en

 a
nd

 m
ou

nd
in

g 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

sc
re

en
 a

nd
 m

ou
nd

in
g 

recycling  compound

1700  L 
Container

1700  L 
Container

1700  L 
Container

recycling  compound

1700  L 
Container

1700  L 
Container

1700  L 
Container

security fence

3

AL(p)06

2

AL(p)06

2

AL(p)06

1

AL(p)06

6

AL(p)06

4

AL(p)06

+ 71.10

+ 71.10

+ 71.10

+ 70.85

+ 70.60

+ 70.50

+ 70.30

+ 70.00

+ 69.40

69.40 +

69.30 +

69.50 +

+70.00

+71.00

+72.30

+ 71.10

71.30+

71.40
        +

71.55
        +

+ 71.80

+ 71.80

+ 72.00

+ 72.15

+ 
72.30

+ 
72.40

+ 70.75

+ 
70.70

+ 
71.00

+ 
71.30

+ 
71.50

+ 
72.00

+ 
70.70

+ 
70.60

+ 
70.60

+ 
70.50

+ 
70.40

+ 
70.30

+ 
70.70

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
sc

re
en

 a
nd

 m
ou

nd
in

g 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
sc

re
en

 a
nd

 m
ou

nd
in

g 

gates

+ 67.14

68.41 +

68.41 +

+67.13

sw
al

e 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r's
 d

et
ai

l

gates

sw
al

e 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r's
 d

et
ai

l

new culvert
to Engineer's 
detail

LP

LP

LP

LP
LP

LP LP LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP LP

LP LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP LP

LP

LP

7

AL(p)06

LP

LP

LP

16

        +
70.20

70.80 +

LP

14

2

+ 
71.90

+ 
71.00

existing kerb line

tree removed

existing kerb line

gate

drainage
pumping
station

69.96 70.10 70.20 70.30
70.54

70.73

71.14

71.21

71.35

71.6071.39

71.16
70.9170.7470.3770.0269.8669.46

69.55
69.91 70.08 70.43 70.79

70.93 71.16
71.45

71.07
70.7270.48

70.1969.98
69.7669.6069.28

69.50
69.55 69.68

69.91 70.12 70.36 70.61
71.02

70.66

70.2369.9069.63
69.5269.3669.28

69.27

68.80 69.09
69.21 69.34

69.55
69.83

70.05
70.46

70.0969.65
69.4269.14

68.9068.6768.57

68.27
68.41

68.61 68.89 69.20 69.48 69.68
69.99

69.89
69.33

69.0668.7568.59
68.41

68.19

69.89 69.99

69.80 70.05 70.25 70.58
70.88

IC
70.25

G 70.24

70.28

70.33

70.41

70.47

70.57

70.70

70.78

70.94

71.05

71.27

71.46

71.52
71.56

71.61

71.72
71.72

71.74

71.81

71.87

71.94

71.97

72.20

72.41

72.51

72.77

72.92

73.12

73.38

G

71.74
71.83

71.81
G

71.95

72.00

72.05

G

72.28

G

72.47

72.61

72.84

73.02

G

73.20

73.45

73.62

G

73.54G

73.35

73.09

72.92
G

72.79

72.15

72.11
G

72.01

71.92
G

71.85

71.59

71.44

71.35

G

71.22

71.03G

70.90

70.64

70.57

G

70.45

73.45

73.27

72.95

72.85

72.67

72.21

72.07

72.05

71.93

71.85

71.75

71.70

71.54
71.50

71.39

71.25

71.13

70.95

70.82

70.55

70.51

70.38

70.26

70.36G70.22

69.92

70.11

70.32

70.47

70.59

70.83

70.96

71.07

71.20

71.33

71.37

71.48

71.61

71.71

71.66

71.58

71.33

71.29

70.97

70.87

70.67

70.52

70.47

70.44

70.21

70.14

69.5469.12

IC
70.32

70.00

INV
68.56

70.01

69.99

70.04

70.14

70.30

71.11

71.03

70.88

70.73

70.55

70.53

70.57

70.32

70.13

70.13

70.09

70.11

70.08

70.26

70.33

70.50

71.1371.13
70.9270.2070.2670.2770.3070.26

70.5070.6470.7570.8970.9671.17

71.58

70.55

71.61

71.95
71.85

71.25
71.32

70.99

70.74
70.54 70.44 70.27 70.12 69.98 69.99 70.00 70.28

70.0369.6969.7169.6569.6569.72
69.8169.8769.8469.9969.9169.82

69.20 69.26 69.28 69.25 69.29 69.21 69.26 69.31 69.36 69.36 69.67 69.85

69.8969.3669.2669.1168.9768.9068.7768.6568.6368.4968.5368.48

71.53

71.77

71.88

71.91

72.44
72.41

72.51

72.74

73.06

73.23

73.52

73.32

72.93

72.39

72.12

72.28
G

71.98

71.81
71.68

G

71.60

71.32

71.67
G

71.79

G

71.50

71.19

G

70.56

70.31

SP

G

G

69.23

71.01

70.11

70.27

70.39

70.60 70.67 70.63

71.2871.0871.0671.11
71.24

71.4571.77
72.12

72.19

71.58

71.92
71.68 71.26

71.33
70.98

71.2871.1370.8770.9571.29

71.5871.7172.15

Bushes

Bushes

Bushes

Drain

Drain

69.0

70.0

71.0

72.0
71.0

71.0

69.0

70.0

71
.0

72.0

73
.0

71
.0

70.70

70.78

Hedge
0 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 M

compacted permeable 
stone hardstanding
bit-mac/ concrete 
hardstanding and roads
pedestrian paving

landscaping see drawing WC307/P1

legend

existing level

Parking provision on site

112 permanent car spaces 2.5 x 5.0 m 
8 disabled parking spaces 3.6 x 6.0 m
81 permanent trailer spaces 10.0 x 3.5 m
13 permanent rigid lorry spaces 12.5 x 3.5 m
14 permanent articulated lorry spaces  16.5 x 3.5 m

14 spaces 16.5 x 3.6 m at loading/unloading dock
5 spaces 6.5 x 4.5 m at vehicle wash

site area 6.862 Ha, 16.95 Ac
(site boundaries to be confirmed)

68.19

tree planting see drawing WC307/P1

main pedestrian access points
livestock access points

stock fencing see AL(p)06/1

+ 
70.28 proposed level+ 
FFL 70.00 proposed finished floor level of building

existing level contour @ 1m intervals

G1T1 existing tree and tree group references

security fencing see AL(p)06 /3

hedge planting see drawing WC307/P1

proposed earth mounding using site
excavated material

+ 
70.60 proposed levels for earth mounding

lighting pole with protecting bollards
LP

main pedestrian access points to building

main stock access points to building

© All copyrights Adrian Jones Associates

Thame Livestock Market
Relocation

Proposed Site 
Block Plan

date

revision

checked

August 
2017

-

job no.
21704

The Cottage Studio
Gellifor, Ruthin
Denbighshire
LL15 1SB

Tel. 01824 790 381
e mail adrian@ajonesassociates .com

Stiwdio'r Bwthyn
Gellifor, Rhuthun

Sir Ddinbych
LL15 1SB

Fax 01824 790 816

project

title

scale

drawing no.

drawn

AL(p)01

planning

1: 500 @ A1

status

Adrian Jones Associates

√

A

15
08
17

rev A - redrawn as option B

B

21
08
17

C

31
08
17

D

01
09
17

E

08
09
17

F

06
11
17

G

17
11
17

01
12
17

H

12
12
17

J

rev J - Planning issue

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



site area 7.0 Ha, 17.03 Ac
(site boundaries to be confirmed)

market site area 5.18 Ha / 12.80 Ac
(excluding access road)

gross internal areas

market building including lairage 
and multi-purpose sale hall* 4,725.5 sqm  50,864.8 sqft

support building** 1,766.7 sqm  19,016.6 sqft

TOTAL 6,492.2 sqm 69,881.4 sqft

supporting business use floor area 646.26 sqm 6,956.3 sqft
(9.95%of total)

*   floor area included up to face of steel work at open loading dock
** non-accessible  reduced headroom areas under tiered stage 1 & 2 not included

market offices
245 sqm/  2637sqft

customer and visitor
welfare facilities 
233 sqm / 2507 sqft

sale ring  viewing areas
Max capacity 500 persons

lettable commercial space
for support businesses
646.26 sqm/ 6956.3 sqft 

building services and plant area
50 sqm/  538 sqft

multi- purpose sales area
702 sqm / 7556.3 sqft 

lairage area including
fodder stores+ loading
702 sqm/ 7556.3 sqft 

11 Nr loading and offloading pens 

110 Nr dual use pens 3.6 x 3.6 m x1.8 m high with
pre-cast concrete dividing wall and auctioneer's 
walkway above 

Legend

+1.140

+2.280

+0. 950

+2.280

38.0 sqm/ 409sqft

250 mm step down to drainage channel

pumps
plantroom
yard store

isolation
pen

fodder /
bedding
store

lairage
loading 
pen

loading pens loading pens loading pens loading pens loading pens

roller shutter

roller shutter

W

W WWWW
W

W
W

W

W

W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

ra
is

ed
 o

pe
ra

to
r's

 p
la

tfo
rm

ca
ttl

e 
so

rti
ng

 a
nd

 n
um

be
rin

g 
ra

ce

cross passage cross passage

cross passage cross passage

cross passage cross passage

sorting

rasied
clerks
office
with
operators
below

up

up

up

up

up

up

up

rostrum

sale ring
7.0 x 3.45m

raised staging tier 1

raised staging tier 2

viewing
boot wash boot wash boot wash boot wash

boot wash

boot wash

boot wash

IT/ secure 
store

drover's 
store/ mess

yard
wc

wc

tea

office 1

office 2 store

reception

 market office

pa
y 

co
un

te
r

kiosk 1

concourse

kiosk 2

cafe

kitchen

kitchen
store

hwc

wcfemale wcs

male wcs

acc.
wc

cln.

display 
window

lairage building chattels saleroom
multi-purpose hall
sh

ee
p 

so
rti

ng
 p

en
s

sorting

viewing

roller shutterloading docks

up

refuge

roller shutterroller shutter

70sqm

15.5 sqm

15.5 sqm

coats
shower

10.0 sqm
7.5sqm

12.5 sqm

w
ei

gh
br

id
ge

80 covers

top half of
sale ring drops
down

up

41sqm
12.5sqm

7.0 sqm

17.0 sqm

interview

meeting/ board room

38.0 sqm/ 409sqft

shop front

shop front

shop front

sh
op

 fro
nt

shop front

plantroom

shop front

tenant fit-out service area 

commercial unit 2 
285.13 sqm/ 3069sqft

electrics

chairs

sl
op

e 
up

 1
in

 1
2

flo
or

 s
lo

pe
 u

p 
1i

n 
60

sl
op

e 
up

 1
in

 6
0

ra
m

p 
up

 1
in

 1
2

sl
op

e 
up

 1
in

 1
2

sl
op

e 
up

 1
in

 1
2

flo
or

 s
lo

pe
 u

p 
1i

n 
60

flo
or

 s
lo

pe
 u

p 
1i

n 
60

ra
is

ed
 a

uc
tio

ne
er

's
 w

al
kw

ay

electrics

boot wash

entrance forecourt
external exhibition space

glazed sliding screen
for large exhibit access

exhibition

seating and
information point

seating and
information point

staff parking

dual use penning dual use penning

parking

raised staging 
tier  over

raised staging 
tier  over

line of roof
over

line of roof
over

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

up

up

up

plantroom tenant fit-out service area 

commercial unit 1 
285.13 sqm/ 3069sqft

el
ec

tri
cs

plantroom

el
ec

tri
cs

FFL 70.00

FFL 70.00 FFL 70.00

FFL 70.00

FFL 70.00

FFL 70.00
+

FFL 70.00
              +

FFL 70.00
              +

FFL 70.00
              +

drainage channel upstand drainage channelupstand

1
AL

04 1
AL

04

2
AL04

2
AL04

raised staging 
tier 1

raised staging 
tier 2

1 2 3 4 5 6

7891011

123456

7 8 9 10 11

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

be
nc

h

be
nc

h

boot wash

outdoor
seating

3
AL

04 3
AL

04

4
AL

04 4
AL

04

rainwater
storage
tank

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 M

© All copyrights Adrian Jones Associates

Thame Livestock Market
Relocation

Proposed Market 
Building 
Ground Floor Plan

date

revision

checked

August 
2017

-

job no.
21704

The Cottage Studio
Gellifor, Ruthin
Denbighshire
LL15 1SB

Tel. 01824 790 381
e mail adrian@ajonesassociates .com

Stiwdio'r Bwthyn
Gellifor, Rhuthun

Sir Ddinbych
LL15 1SB

Fax 01824 790 816

project

title

scale

drawing no.

drawn

AL(p)02

planning

1: 100 @ A0

status

Adrian Jones Associates

√

A

16
08
17

Rev A: Layout amended
Rev B: Levels and notes added

B

21
08
17

C

12
12
17

Rev C: Planning  issue

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



+1.140

+2.280

+0. 950

+2.280

250 mm step down to drainage channel

pumps
plantroom
yard store

isolation
pen

fodder /
bedding
store

lairage
loading 
pen

loading pens loading pens loading pens loading pens loading pens

roller shutter

roller shutter

W

W WWWW
W

W
W

W

W

W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

W W

ra
is

ed
 o

pe
ra

to
r's

 p
la

tfo
rm

ca
ttl

e 
so

rti
ng

 a
nd

 n
um

be
rin

g 
ra

ce

cross passage cross passage

sorting

rasied
clerks
office
with
operators
below

up

up

up

up

up

up

up

rostrum

sale ring
7.0 x 3.45m

raised staging 
tier 1

raised staging 
tier 2

boot wash

boot wash

upper part of
lairage building

upper par of 
chattels saleroom
multi-purpose hall

sh
ee

p 
so

rti
ng

 p
en

s

sorting

roller shutter

loading docks

up

refuge

roller shutterroller shutter

12.5 sqm

w
ei

gh
br

id
ge

top half of
sale ring drops
down

flo
or

 s
lo

pe
 u

p 
1i

n 
60

sl
op

e 
up

 1
in

 6
0

ra
m

p 
up

 1
in

 1
2

ra
is

ed
 a

uc
tio

ne
er

's
 w

al
kw

ay

upper part of dual 
use penning area

line of roof
over

line of roof
over

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

bo
ot

w
as

h

up

up

raised staging 
tier 3

up up

1 2 3 4 5 6

7891011

12

13

14

15

16

17
18

19

1

123456

7 8 9 10 11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18

19

raised staging 
tier 4

upper part of dual 
use penning area

ceiling void of
market office ceiling void of

cafe

upper part of concourse

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

12

13

14

15

16

12

13

14

15

16

1
AL

04 1
AL

04

2
AL04

2
AL04

3
AL

04 3
AL

04

4
AL

04 4
AL

04

ceiling void ceiling void 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 M

© All copyrights Adrian Jones Associates

Thame Livestock Market
Relocation

date

revision

checked

August 
2017

-

job no.
21704

The Cottage Studio
Gellifor, Ruthin
Denbighshire
LL15 1SB

Tel. 01824 790 381
e mail adrian@ajonesassociates .com

Stiwdio'r Bwthyn
Gellifor, Rhuthun

Sir Ddinbych
LL15 1SB

Fax 01824 790 816

project

title

scale

drawing no.

drawn

AL(p)03

planning

1: 100 @ A0

status

Adrian Jones Associates

√

Proposed Market 
Building First Floor 
Plan at level 73.60

A

12
12
17

Rev A: Planning issue

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



A C G L Q S

1.south elevation

FFL 70.00

78.370

75.470

2.east elevation

FFL 70.00

79.460

80.660

78.370

75.470

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16654321

galvanized steel door
galvanized steel doorgalvanized steel door

kitchen extract 
grille

loading dock

3.west elevation

FFL 70.00

78910111213141516 6 5 4 3 2 1

galvanized steel doorgalvanized steel door
galvanized steel door

A C G L Q S

4.north elevation
penning not shown

void void void void

galvanized steel
roller shutter

galvanized steel
roller shutter

galvanized steel
frame

colour coated
profiled metal
insulated composite
roof cladding and
matching flashings

colour coated profiled 
metal single skin cladding
with condensation control 
finish to underside with 15%
plastic rooflights

colour coated
profiled metal
insulated composite
wall cladding with
matching flashings

fair faced blockwork to 
outer leaf
to masonry cavity wall

fair faced brickwork
outer leaf to masonry 
cavity wall

naturally durable
timber cladding 
weathered naturally

hit and miss treated 
timber boarding

smooth faced precast
concrete wall units with
galbvanized steel fixings

legend

all windows and doors
in colour coated metal
unless noted otherwise

rainwater pipes in 
galvanized steel

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 M

scale bar 1: 100 @ A0

© All copyrights Adrian Jones Associates

Thame Livestock Market
Relocation

date

revision

checked

August 
2017

-

job no.
21704

The Cottage Studio
Gellifor, Ruthin
Denbighshire
LL15 1SB

Tel. 01824 790 381
e mail adrian@ajonesassociates .com

Stiwdio'r Bwthyn
Gellifor, Rhuthun

Sir Ddinbych
LL15 1SB

Fax 01824 790 816

project

title

scale

drawing no.

drawn

AL(p)05

planning

1: 100 @ A0

status

Adrian Jones Associates

√

Proposed Market 
Building Elevations 

A
13
10
17

Rev A: Elevations updated
Rev B: Planning issue

B
12
12
17

1 1

2

2

3 3

4 4

key plan (nts) 

4

3 2

1
see drawing AL(p)04 for sectional elevations

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

line of proposed 
earth mounding

indicative  line
of proposed hedge
1200mm high

indicative  line
of proposed tree
planting 4500 mm
high

entrance signage

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

Rycote Lane

78910111213141516 6 5 4 3 2 1

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

Rycote Lane

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

proposed market building

proposed earth mounding
new hedgeline and stock
fence

proposed earth mounding
security fence and hedgeline

line of existing ground
to be removed

culvert

existing tree line

tree and hedge lines are illustrative only
see Visual Impact Assessment for detail

car parking lairage

lorry parking

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

A C G L Q S

proposed market building

proposed earth mounding
and tree planting

line of existing ground
to be removed

existing tree line

proposed earth mounding
tree planting and stock fence

water storage tankproposed swale

market building

X

X

YY

Z

Z

Rycote Lane

key plan 1: 1000

site section X-X as proposed @ 1: 500

site section Y-Y as proposed @ 1: 500

sectional view from road Z-Z @ 1: 500

typical section through earth mounding  @ 1: 50

stock fencing

existing ground level

graded topsoil finished
mounding from site
excavated material

see landscaping drawing
WC 307P1 for details
of planting

1

AL(p)06

site section X-X as existing @ 1: 500

site section Y-Y as existing @ 1: 500

0 5 10 15 20 25 M

scale bar 1: 500 @ A1

© All copyrights Adrian Jones Associates

Thame Livestock Market
Relocation

date

revision

checked

August 
2017

-

job no.
21704

The Cottage Studio
Gellifor, Ruthin
Denbighshire
LL15 1SB

Tel. 01824 790 381
e mail adrian@ajonesassociates .com

Stiwdio'r Bwthyn
Gellifor, Rhuthun

Sir Ddinbych
LL15 1SB

Fax 01824 790 816

project

title

scale

drawing no.

drawn

AL(p)07

planning

1: 500 @ A1
1: 50

status

Adrian Jones Associates

√

Proposed and Existing
Site Sections

08
11
17

A

Revision A - detail of mounding added
Revision B - detail of swale added

14
11
17

B

Revision C - Planning issue

12
12
17

C

10
00

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

69.00
70.00
71.00
72.00
73.00

68.00
67.00
66.00

74.00
75.00

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

APPLICATION NO. P18/S0951/O
APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE
REGISTERED 20.3.2018
PARISH HARPSDEN
WARD MEMBERS Will Hall

Paul Harrison
APPLICANT Mr D O'Leary
SITE Wyevale Country Gardens, Reading Road, 

Harpsden, RG9 4AE
PROPOSAL Outline planning permission for demolition of all 

existing structures, development of B1 and/or B2 
and/or D1 floorspace and required parking and 
servicing facilities on the south-eastern part of the 
site; development of up to 40 dwellings on the rest 
of the site; off-site highways works together with 
associated open space and landscaping. All matters 
to be reserved with the exception of access.

AMENDMENTS As clarified by additional information accompanying 
Agent’s email dated 3 May 2018 and amended by 
plans and information received 13 August 2018, 29 
August 2018, 12 September 2018 and 1 November 
2018.

OFFICER Emma Bowerman

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This application is referred to the Planning Committee as the officer’s 
recommendation conflicts with the views of Harpsden Parish Council. 

1.2 The application was deferred from the committee meeting on 26 September 2018 to 
allow Councillors an opportunity to visit the site and allow the applicant to update their 
viability report.  

1.3 The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A) was 
formerly a garden centre and has been derelict since 2009.  There are a number of 
buildings on the site associated with its former use and these are in a dilapidated 
state.  There is also a large area of hardstanding on the site.    

1.4 The 1.84 hectare site is marked with trees and vegetation and there is fencing along 
the Reading Road (A4155).  There is a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) on the site, 
which protects several tree species along the road frontage.
  

1.5 The application site does not fall within any areas of special designation.  

1.6 The site is within the parish of Harpsden.  The parish boundary runs along the 
Reading Road and the house opposite the site (Bell Cottage) is within the parish of 
Shiplake.  The site falls within the designated Joint Henley and Harpsden 
Neighbourhood Plan (JHHNP) area.

Page 49

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S0951/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This application seeks outline planning permission to re-develop the former garden 
centre.  The development would include an area of B1 (business), B2 (general 
industrial), or D1 (non-residential institution), on the southern parcel of land.  D1 uses 
can include clinics, day nurseries, art galleries and education centres.  Up to 40 new 
homes and associated infrastructure are proposed on the main body of the site.  

2.2 The application seeks detailed consent for the access.  The matters of appearance, 
layout, scale and landscaping are reserved for consideration later.  

2.3 An indicative layout plan accompanies the application and this shows how the site 
could accommodate the proposed level of development.  Given that the application is in 
outline, this is for indicative purposes only.  Vehicular access to the site would be from 
Reading Road and this is the only aspect of the development that is detailed in the 
application documents.  

2.4 The application plans and documents have been amended during the application 
process in response to comments received by our urban design officer, housing officer 
and forestry officer.  The most notable amendment involves the access details and 
changes the originally proposed mini-roundabout back to the existing access form of a 
simple priority junction.  This was necessary to avoid conflict with the protected trees.  
An air quality assessment report was also submitted during the application process.   
 

2.5 The indicative site layout is attached as Appendix B, along with an indicative street 
scene.  The application is accompanied by several supporting documents, including a 
Design and Access Statement, Planning Statement and Marketing Report.  These are 
available to view on the council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk.

2.6 The application is also accompanied by a Viability Report and this was updated on 30 
October 2018.  In the interests of openness and transparency, this is available to view 
on the council’s website.  The council’s review of the viability report is also available to 
view.  

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

3.1 Harpsden Parish Council – Object for the following reasons:
- Overtaken by the decision to allow development on Thames Farm
- Further congestion on A4155 
- No safety benefits as no roundabout is proposed
- Unsustainable and dependent on services in Henley 

3.2 Shiplake Parish Council – Object for the following reasons:
- Conflict with the JHHNP 
- Loss of a valuable economic B1 / B2 site
- Not satisfying demand for housing in Henley
- Shiplake already has excessive development for the village amenities
- Cumulative impact with other development 
- Concerns about viability evidence and marketing of the site
- Highway safety 
- Air and light pollution 
- Educational provision 
- Reduction in separation between Henley and Shiplake

Page 50

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

3.3 Henley-on-Thames Town Council – Support, subject to:
- A footpath enabling residents to walk to Tesco and Henley
- Further comment from highways after a further traffic and transport study

3.4 The Henley Society – Object due to failure to comply with the JHHNP and that the 
development would result in housing outlier to Lower Shiplake, inconsistent with 
planning policy.  

3.5 The Chiltern Society – Object as does not satisfy policy requirement for B1 / B2 usage 
and concerns over increased infrastructure pressures.   

3.6 Campaign for the Preservation of Rural England – Object due to loss of employment 
land at a time of housing growth.  

3.7 Thames Water – No objection.

3.8 Southern Gas Network – No objection.  Provided guidance on safe practice around 
gas pipes.  

3.9 Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group – Object until they can discuss how the 
local health economy would be supported as a result of housing growth.  

3.10 Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) Strategic Comments – It is appreciated that 
there could be a strategic issue given the cumulative effect on the highway network 
from various developments in this area. However, the officer view is that the effects are 
not sufficient to sustain a transport objection on this application.

3.11 OCC Highways – No objection subject to conditions and completion of a legal 
agreement.

3.12 OCC Education – There is sufficient capacity at schools in the Henley planning
area at this time to meet the demands arising from the development.

3.13 OCC Local Member Views –  As a result of the Thames Farm decision the serious 
infrastructure issues around Henley will be significantly exacerbated and applications 
for further unallocated housing should be refused.  

3.14 South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) Economic Development – Expressed 
reservations about the proposal but appreciate that a complete B1, B2 or D1 scheme is 
not currently financially viable.  Do not support the proposal but if the application is 
approved a minimum of 500 square metres of employment land should be secured.  

3.15 SODC Urban Design – Supports the application.  

3.16 SODC Forestry – No objection subject to conditions. 

3.17 SODC Countryside – No objection subject to a condition.  

3.18 SODC Housing Development – No objection subject to completion of a legal 
agreement.  

3.19 SODC Drainage – No objection subject to conditions.

Page 51



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

3.20 SODC Air Quality – No objection subject to conditions. 

3.21 SODC Contaminated Land – No objection subject to conditions.

3.22 SODC Environmental Protection – No objection subject to conditions.

3.23 SODC Waste Management – No objection 

3.24 Local Residents
15 representations in objection to the application raising the following concerns:
- Shiplake has already taken its fair share of housing
- Contrary to Neighbourhood Plan 
- Should be retained in employment use / accord with current designation
- Undermines the planning system 
- Viability not a sufficient justification for development 
- Poor appearance of site not justification for development 
- Further marketing required
- Impact on highway safety 

   Dangerous access
   Additional traffic 
   Congestion
   Lack of cycle lane / footpath
   Cumulative impact with other developments 

- Impact on character of village
- Urbanisation 
- Intrusion into green gap between Shiplake and Henley
- Development too dense 
- No need for further housing in the area 
- Mix of units provided and whether they would be affordable
- Impact on services – education and health
- Unsustainable 
- Limited job opportunities in local area
- Additional car parking pressure in village centre 
- Pollution 
- Thames Waters legal easements could alter layout

1 representation raising no strong views but with the following comments:
- All objections to the Thames Farm development are still valid 
- Development would add pressure to community resources 
- Impact of additional traffic on road infrastructure 

2 representations received in support with the following comments:
- Site has become an eyesore and attracted vandals 
- Need for more housing

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 There is no relevant planning history on the application site.  

4.2 There is an extant planning permission on adjoining land at Thames Farm.  An outline 
planning application for up to 95 homes was allowed on appeal in August 2017 under 
application refence P16/S0970/O.  This development will be located to the south of the 
application site, on the opposite side of Upper Bolney Lane.   

Page 52



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) updated in July 2018 and the 

associated NPPF Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

5.2 Adopted South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) 2027
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSC1  -  Delivery and contingency
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSG1   -  Green infrastructure
CSH1  -  Amount and distribution of housing
CSH2  -  Housing density
CSH3  -  Affordable housing
CSH4  -  Meeting housing needs
CSHEN1  -  The Strategy for Henley-on-Thames
CSQ4  -  Design briefs for greenfield neighbourhoods and major development sites
CSI1  -  Infrastructure provision
CSM1  -  Transport
CSM2  -  Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.3 Adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) 2011 saved policies
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D10  -  Waste Management
D12  -  Public art
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D6  -  Community safety
E6  -  Retention of employment sites
EP1  -  Adverse affect on people and environment
EP2  -  Adverse affect by noise or vibration
EP3  -  Adverse affect by external lighting
EP4  -  Impact on water resources
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
EP7  -  Impact on ground water resources
EP8  -  Contaminated land
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G3  -  Development well served by facilities and transport
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
R2  -  Provision of play areas on new housing development
R6  -  Public open space in new residential development
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 Made Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Development Plan (JHHNP) 
2027
H1 – Allocate land for 500 new homes 
H3 – Type and size of new housing 

Page 53



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

E2 – Former Wyevale Garden Centre 
T1 – Impact of development on the transport network 
EN1 – Biodiversity 
DQS1 – Local Character 

5.5 Emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2032
The Council is preparing a new Local Plan, which will set out how development will be
planned and delivered across South Oxfordshire to 2033. The overall strategy in draft 
policy STRAT1 includes supporting and enhancing the economic and social 
dependencies between towns and villages; supporting the role of Henley-on Thames; 
and allowing limited housing and employment development at smaller villages.  

Due to the stage of preparation, the Emerging Plan can only be given limited weight.  

5.6 Emerging Shiplake Neighbourhood Development Plan 
Shiplake Neighbourhood Area was formally designated in July 2017.  The Parish 
Council has started the process of gathering evidence and engaging with the local 
community.  This is to give the plan direction and draft policies that will form part of the 
neighbourhood plan.  

This document carries very limited weight due to its early stage in preparation.  

5.7 South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG) 2016
This guide sets out the standard that we expect developments to meet through a series 
of checklists that relate to key design principles.  

5.8 Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
The proposal is beneath the thresholds set in Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 (as amended).  This is 
because the proposal does not exceed 150 homes, the site area is under 5ha and is 
not within a ‘sensitive area’.  It is therefore not EIA development.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 The relevant planning considerations in the determination of this application are:

 The principle of the development

 Matters of detail / technical issues:
- affordable housing and housing mix,
- traffic impact and highway safety,
- character and appearance,
- trees and ecology,
- neighbour amenity and amenity of future residents,
- flood risk and surface / foul drainage,
- environmental matters (air quality, contamination and noise). 

 Infrastructure requirements:
- on-site infrastructure to be secured under a legal agreement,
- contributions pooled under the Community Infrastructure Levy. 

Page 54



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6.2

The principle of the development 

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

6.3 In the case of South Oxfordshire, the Development Plan consists of the South 
Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) which was adopted in December 2012, and the 
saved policies of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) 2011.  

6.4 The Joint Henley Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan (JHHNP) also forms part of the 
Development Plan and was formally “made” in April 2016.  Development which is not in 
accordance with an up-to-date development plan should be refused unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

6.5 There is a site-specific policy for the application site in the JHHNP.  Policy E2 states:

The Former Wyevale Garden Centre is allocated for:
a. B1 and B2 business activities;
b. D1 activities, where these can be shown to make a demonstrable contribution 

to the local economy.
 

Proposals for this site should demonstrate how the proposed development has 
appropriately:
c. Made a design response that suits the sensitive rural nature of the location and

adjacent village of Lower Shiplake; and
d. Suitably mitigated impact on views use planting and green screening.

6.6 The text accompanying this policy explains:

The currently redundant site has the potential to contribute significantly to the 
employment and culture of the local area through an appropriately sensitive 
development. Proposals should deliver a low-density development that could 
incorporate modern offices that are sensitively designed using traditional
materials, alongside accommodation to suit more traditional arts and crafts that 
may also operate with an ancillary retail component. Sensitive landscaping and 
planting and an integrated parking strategy will be important in ensuring a 
satisfactory design response.

6.7 The application proposes a housing-led mixed-use development, with an area specified 
for employment.  The indicative plans show that the employment area would represent 
around 11% of the site area (0.2 hectares).  Hence although there is a business 
element, the proposed housing led scheme conflicts with the site-specific JHHNP policy 
E2, which allocates the site exclusively for commercial use.   As such, the development 
does not accord with the site allocation in our up-to-date Development Plan.  

6.8 The applicant has presented a case to demonstrate that there are material 
considerations that require the development to be assessed otherwise than in 
accordance with the Development Plan.  The application was accompanied by a 
viability assessment which concluded that the balance of costs and values associated 
with bringing forward a development that would comply with the allocated use of the 
site would not be viable.  This report was updated in October 2018 to take account of 
the most up to date market conditions and guidance on viability appraisals.   

Page 55



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6.9 The viability assessment was reviewed on behalf of the council by an independent 
consultant who concluded that a B1, B2 or D1 scheme in this location is not currently 
financially viable.  The independent review specified that in order for such a use to 
become viable, build costs would need to reduce considerably and achievable rents 
increase to a level which is highly unlikely in the short to medium term.  Our consultants 
review of the updated viability report again confirmed that a B1, B2 or D1 development 
opportunity remains unviable.     

6.10 The application is also accompanied by a marketing report outlining how the site has 
been marketed for the past seven years, and specifically for the 12-month period prior 
to the submission of the application.  Our economic development manager has 
reviewed this report and has expressed reservations about the proposal.  She has 
raised concerns about whether the level of employment land proposed would be 
suitable for businesses and commented that she has been contacted by stakeholders 
strongly objecting to the loss of employment land.  

6.11 However, our economic development manager has noted that the applicant has 
provided documentation to meet the requirements of policy E6 of the SOLP, which 
seeks to retain employment sites.  Policy E6 specifies that proposals for the change of 
use of redundant land or buildings in employment use to non-employment use will be 
permitted if:

The existing use is no longer economically viable, and the site has been marketed 
at a reasonable price for at least a year for that and any other suitable employment 
or service trade uses.  

6.12 Given that the applicant has carried out a suitable marketing exercise and has 
demonstrated that the site allocation is not viable, I consider that it would be difficult to 
resist a housing led development on the site.  Sufficient justification has been provided 
to demonstrate that the allocated use is unlikely to come forward.  

6.13 As advised by the NPPF, where a local planning authority considers there to be no 
reasonable prospect of an application coming forward for the use allocated in the 
Development Plan:

a) They should, as part of plan updates, reallocate the land for a more deliverable 
use that can help to address identified needs (or, if appropriate, deallocate a site 
which is undeveloped); and

b) in the interim, prior to updating the plan, applications for alternative uses on the 
land should be supported, where the proposed use would contribute to meeting 
an unmet need for development in the area.

6.14 Based on the above assessment, I consider that there are material considerations of 
sufficient weight that would justify a decision that is contrary to the allocation in the 
JHHNP.  I therefore have no objection to the principle of the development. 

6.15 To ensure that the employment use does come forward, I recommend that a 
mechanism is included in the legal agreement to help secure the development of this 
land.  

Page 56



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6.16

Matters of detail / technical issues 

Affordable housing and housing mix

The application proposes to provide 16 affordable units on site, which would amount to 
40% of the development.  An indicative layout of the affordable units is attached as 
Appendix C.  The affordable units would have a tenure split of 75% affordable rent and 
25% shared ownership.  The mix has been agreed with our housing development team 
and would meet the needs on our housing register.  

6.17 I am satisfied that the indicative plans show that a policy compliant level of affordable 
housing provision can be delivered across the site in a tenure blind manner.  Subject to 
the completion of a legal agreement to secure the affordable housing provision, I 
consider that the scheme is acceptable in this respect and complies with the above 
relevant policies.
  

6.18 In relation to the market mix, the indicative plan states that this will be in general 
conformity with the Strategic Market Housing Assessment (SHMA).  Subject to a 
suitable condition, the mix of homes would deliver a wide choice, in accordance with 
the relevant policies.  JHHNP policy H3 requires a Dwelling Statement to demonstrate 
how the mix of homes would contribute towards meeting local needs and I suggest that 
a condition requiring a Dwelling Statement to be submitted as part of a reserved 
matters submission.  

6.19

Traffic impact and highway safety

A number of consultees have raised concerns that the proposed development will add 
to pressures on the local highway network.  In accordance with the NPPF, development 
should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 
network would be severe.  
  

6.20 The County Council Highways Officer has assessed the submitted information and has 
commented that the proposal would result in a modest increase in peak hour trips, in 
comparison to the lawful use of the site.  However, subject to appropriate travel 
planning and the provision / improvement of sustainable transport services and 
infrastructure, he is satisfied that the impact of development traffic would not be 
sufficient to justify a refusal of planning permission.

6.21 Furthermore, it is important to consider the impact that the allocated use of the site 
would have on the highway network.  If the site was used for employment generating 
B1 / B2 / D1 use, as specified in policy E2 of the JHHNP, this would generate greater 
levels of peak time travel. 
 

6.22 In terms of accessibility, the highways infrastructure for this development would meet 
up with the highways infrastructure associated with the Thames Farm development to 
allow pedestrian access to Lower Shiplake via the Reading Road.  The centre of Lower 
Shiplake can also be accessed via a footpath and Northfield End, which is around a 
half a mile walk.  A small range of local amenities are available in the village including 
post office, local shop and railway station. Shiplake primary school is somewhat further 
away, approximately 2.2km. 

6.23 In addition, Reading Road is a bus corridor that provides frequent access to Henley, 
Reading and High Wycombe.  Subject to improvements to public transport, I am 
satisfied that future residents would not have to be wholly reliant on travel by private car 

Page 57



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

and would have a choice of travel modes to access employment, amenities and leisure 
activities.  

6.24 The following contributions are required towards public transport services and 
infrastructure to improve accessibility and reduce the likely reliance on private motor 
cars and can be secured through a legal agreement:

- A £1,000 per dwelling contribution towards public transport services (indicatively 
£40,000) to pump prime an increased level of service. 

- A £10,410 contribution towards public transport infrastructure for the provision of a 
bus shelter and bus stop flags / poles.  

- Highways works including gateway features, resurfacing of bridleway, footpaths 
and uncontrolled pedestrian crossings 

6.25 The form of the junction at the access was changed from a proposed  mini-roundabout 
to a simple priority junction during the application process.  The highways officer is 
satisfied that the revised form of access is appropriate for the scale of the development 
proposed.   Appropriate visibility splays, commensurate with surveyed speed of traffic 
along Reading Road, are demonstrated on the submitted plan and should be retained 
without obstruction.    

6.26 I am satisfied that there is sufficient space on site to accommodate a level of parking 
that would accord with the council’s parking standards and this would be detailed at 
reserved matters stage.  Subject to conditions to secure the visibility splays, agree a 
Construction Traffic Management Plan, and secure a Travel Plan, I have no objection to 
the development on traffic and highway safety grounds.  

6.27 In my opinion the proposal would comply with the relevant Development Plan policies.  
This includes policy CSM1 of the SOCS, policy T1 of the SOLP and policy T1 of the 
JHHNP, which encourage and support the use of sustainable transport modes and 
provide for a safe and convenient access to the highway network.  

6.28

Character and appearance

There are clear views of the derelict buildings on the site from Reading Road and the 
current roadside fencing detracts from the approach to Lower Shiplake.  There are also 
glimpsed views of the site from Upper Bolney Lane, which is a public footpath, to the 
south of the site.  The immediate surrounding area is characterised by agricultural land 
and vegetation.  The site is generally flat, is well contained by vegetation, and is not 
particularly prominent in the wider landscape.  
 

6.29 The introduction of housing on the site will significantly change the overall character 
and appearance of the site.  Given the characteristics of the site, I consider that this 
impact would be localised and would have a limited impact on the wider landscape 
character of the area.  This is a brownfield site and I do not consider that the 
development would result in adverse impacts in terms of coalescence between Lower 
Shiplake and Henley.  

6.30 In due course the proposed development would also be experienced in the context of 
the Thames Farm development to the south.  This adjoining development would link the 
proposed development to the existing built-up-limits of Lower Shiplake.  Based on all 
the above factors, I consider that a high quality and well-designed housing led scheme 

Page 58



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

would be an acceptable alternative to the existing site use and its allocated use for a 
business development.   

6.31 The applicant has worked with our urban design officer to improve the layout and 
overall design rational of the development.  The amended plans have addressed 
several of the issues raised by our design officer, who now supports the application.  I 
am satisfied that the illustrative layout has demonstrated that the level of development 
proposed could be accommodated on site and that a detailed scheme could be 
improved further at reserved matters stage.  

6.32 I consider that the scheme represents an appropriate response to the constraints and 
opportunities of the site and its surroundings.  I am satisfied that the scale of the 
development would be appropriate to the context of the site and that the development 
would generally meet the design objectives of the NPPF and the Development Plan 
policies that seek to secure high quality developments.  This includes policy CSQ3 of 
the SOCS, policies D1-D4 of the SOLP and JHHNP policy DQS1, which together seek 
to ensure developments contribute to a sense of place, respond to local character and 
that new environments are safe and accessible. 

6.33

Trees and ecology

As referred to earlier the initial plans submitted with the application proposed a mini-
roundabout at the access.  The impact of the highways works required to provide the 
roundabout would have resulted in the loss and premature decline of the trees fronting 
the road.  These trees are protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) and are 
significant landscape features.  The loss of these trees would have adversely changed 
the character of the area and opened up views into the site.  
 

6.34 The amended plans have addressed this issue and our forestry officer is satisfied that, 
subject to suitable mitigation measures, the development can progress without a 
significant impact on any important arboricultural features.  A tree protection condition 
would ensure that retained trees are protected during development.   

6.35 A reserved matters application would require detailed landscaping proposals and would 
need to provide substantial tree planting to help enhance and soften the development, 
as well as to mitigate for tree losses.  Subject to the future agreement of these details, I 
consider that the development would accord with policies CSEN1 of the SOCS and 
Policy C9 of the SOLP, which seek to resist the loss of important landscape features 
and require measures to integrate development into the landscape.   

6.36 With regards to ecology, the site has been subject to surveys which have not revealed 
the presence of any important habitats or populations of rare or protected species.  The 
existing habitats are principally formed of hard standing and the remnants of the former 
garden centre buildings. These habitats are of low ecological value.

6.37 Our ecologist has confirmed that the proposals are unlikely to result in a net loss of 
biodiversity resource for the site, in accordance with policy CSB1 of the SOCS.  Subject 
to a condition requiring a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP) to accompany a 
reserved matters submission, I have no objection to the development in relation to this 
matter.  A BEP should demonstrate both habitat and species enhancements.  

6.38

Neighbour amenity and amenity of future residents

As the application is in outline, the position and scale of the proposed homes is not 
fixed.  The layout of the proposed development may change at reserved matters stage 

Page 59



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

and the impact on neighbouring properties will be carefully assessed under any future 
application.  

6.39 Based on the indicative layout, the distance to neighbouring properties, and the 
intervening screening, I believe the development could be achieved without any 
adverse impacts on neighbours in terms of light, outlook and privacy.  This would 
accord with policy D4 of the SOLP, which requires new development to secure an 
appropriate level of privacy for existing residents.  

6.40 Policy D3 of the SOLP requires all new homes to benefit from either a private garden, 
outdoor amenity space or a shared amenity area.  Based on the indicative plans, I am 
satisfied that a suitable layout could be achieved that would provide an appropriate 
level of outdoor space for future residents.  

6.41

Flood risk and surface / foul drainage

The application site is within Flood Zone 1 (least probability of flooding).  Our drainage 
engineers have considered the submitted Flood Risk and Drainage Assessment and 
have raised no objection to the development.  

6.42 The development would need to incorporate sustainable drainage details to ensure that 
all surface water run-off is accommodated within the confines of the site and discharged 
in a controlled manner.  As the site is in a groundwater source protection zone the 
drainage details will need to provide a robust solution to pollution prevention and this 
should be in consultation with the Environment Agency.  As required by our drainage 
consultant, the details of this can be secured by condition, in accordance with policies 
EP6 and EP7 of the SOLP, which seek to protect ground / surface water resources.  

6.43 Thames Water have advised that they have no objection with regards to water network 
infrastructure capacity.  They have also raised no objection with regards to waste water 
network and waste water process infrastructure capacity.  Details of foul drainage can 
be secured through a condition.  

6.44

Environmental matters (air quality, contamination, noise)

Our air quality officer has reviewed the submitted air quality assessment and has 
confirmed that the mitigation measures proposed would be sufficient to mitigate against 
the air quality impacts of this development and the cumulative effects of piecemeal 
developments.  

6.45 The mitigation measures include electric vehicle charging points, cycle storage and the 
provision of Sustainable Travel Packs.  Our air quality officer has also requested that a 
minimum standard of gas boiler is used in the development and this is a matter that can 
be addressed through a condition.  As such, the proposal would comply with policy EP1 
of the SOLP, which seeks to secure mitigation measures to ensure that developments 
do not have an adverse effect on health and amenity.  

6.46 With regards to contamination, our contaminated land officer has considered the details 
that were submitted with the application and has no objection to the development 
subject to contaminated land conditions.  These require a phased risk assessment to 
include an investigation and any necessary remediation of the land, to accord with 
policy EP8 of the SOLP.  

Page 60



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6.47 As recommended by our environmental protection officer, conditions are necessary in 
relation to construction hours and the control of dust, to reduce the impact of 
construction activities on local residents.  

6.48 As the application proposes an area of commercial development in close proximity to 
residential development, I also consider it necessary to require a noise assessment for 
the future commercial use and a restriction on operating hours of this part of the 
development.  This would comply with policy EP2 of the SOLP, which seeks to ensure 
that developments do not have an adverse impact on existing or new occupiers in 
terms of noise.  

6.49

Infrastructure requirements 

On-site infrastructure to be secured under a legal agreement

On-site infrastructure can be secured through a legal agreement under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  In addition to the affordable 
housing, the County Council highway contributions outlined above, and a mechanism to 
help secure the delivery of the employment element, a S106 would be used to secure 
the provision and maintenance of on-site public open space and a Localised Area of 
Play.  The size and quality of these on-site facilities would accord with policies R2 and 
R6 of the SOLP.  

6.50 In accordance with the council’s S106 Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 
Document, the following additional financial contributions would be required towards 
on-site infrastructure:

- Provision of recycling / refuse bins - £170 per property (indicatively £6,800)

- Street naming and numbering - £134 per 10 dwellings (indicatively £536)

- Provision of public art - £300 per dwelling plus £10 per sq.m commercial 
(indicatively £12,000 plus commercial floorspace)   

- S106 monitoring fee - £2,606

6.51 I consider that these contributions / obligations accord with policy CSI1 of the SOCS, 
which requires new development to be supported by appropriate on and off-site 
infrastructure and services.  They accord with the relevant tests in the NPPF as they 
are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, are directly 
related to the development and are fair and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
development.  They are further justified through policies D10 (waste) and D12 (public 
art) of the SOLP.  

6.52

Off-site contributions pooled under the Community Infrastructure Levy

The council adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in 2016.  Except for the 
affordable housing, the development would be CIL liable at a rate of £150 per sq.m 
(index linked).  The money collected from the development can be pooled with 
contributions from other development sites to fund a wide range of infrastructure to 
support growth, including schools, transport, community, leisure and health facilities.    

6.53 Under the CIL regulations, Harpsden Parish Council will receive 25% of the CIL 
monies.  This can be spent on infrastructure projects that are priorities for the 
community or could contribute towards strategic infrastructure. 

Page 61



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

7.0 CONCLUSION

7.1 This application proposes a mainly residential development of a site that is allocated in 
a Neighbourhood Plan for employment use.  As such, the development is contrary to 
the Development Plan.  However, in this case, there are material considerations that 
indicate that a decision should be taken that is not in accordance with the Development 
Plan.  

7.2 The applicant has provided an up to date viability assessment which demonstrates that 
the allocated employment use of the site is not viable, and this has been confirmed 
through an independent review.  The site has also been marketed.  The application is 
accompanied by sufficient evidence to demonstrate that there is no reasonable 
prospect of an application coming forward for the allocated use.  
 

7.3 In accordance with the NPPF, applications for alternative uses should be supported 
where the proposed use would contribute to meeting an unmet need for development in 
the area.  The proposal would contribute towards the housing needs in our district and 
would add to our much-needed affordable housing stock.  

7.4 The development would utilise a currently vacant brownfield site and is a location where 
some services and facilities would be available to future occupiers without reliance on 
the private car.  The development would add some further pressure to local roads but 
the cumulative impacts on the road network would not be severe.  Furthermore, the 
development would have a limited landscape impact and a suitably designed scheme 
could be achieved through a reserved matters application.  

7.5 Solutions have been found to all technical matters and the development would not 
result in any adverse impacts that would outweigh the benefits of bringing this 
brownfield development back into efficient use.  The NPPF requires local planning 
authorities to approach decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative 
way, and when considered against the development plan as a whole, the proposal 
would represent a sustainable form of development bringing social and environmental 
benefits.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION

To delegate authority to grant planning permission to the Head of Planning 
subject to:

i) The prior completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure the affordable 
housing, financial contributions and other obligations stated above; and

ii) The following conditions:

1. Approval of reserved matters – appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale.

2. Timeframe for submission of reserved matters.
3. Commencement.
4. Development to accord with approved plans.
5. Dwelling statement based on most up-to-date evidence.
6. Approved access provided prior to occupation.
7. Visibility splays. 
8. Construction traffic management plan.
9. Travel plan / information pack. 
10. Tree protection.

Page 62



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

11. Biodiversity enhancement plan.
12. Foul drainage provision. 
13. Sustainable drainage details. 
14. Air quality mitigation. 
15. Phased contaminated risk assessment.
16. Remediation strategy. 
17. Construction hours. 
18. Control of construction dust.
19. Noise assessment and control (commercial element).
20. Operating hours (commercial element).

 

Author: Emma Bowerman
Contact No: 01235 422600
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



13/09/2018 GIS Print

http://savvpsparc03.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/intranet/jointgis/1.50/asp/print.asp?class=A4Portrait&imageurl=http://savvpsparc03.capitacou… 1/1

Page 65

Agenda Item 9

SAV_EMMBOW
Typewriter
Appendix A - Site Plan 



GSPublisherEngine 1560.26.29.100

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes
only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.
All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision.
Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.
All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work on site.
No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.
The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.
Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, etc. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is
essential prior to work commencing.
Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found.  The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with
the contractor.

NA/6000/11 O

Former Wyevale GardenCentre

Lower Shiplake, Henley

Site Layout as Proposed

L O N D O N   O F F I C E :     6   Q U E E N    S Q U A R E ,     W C 1N  3 A T
T E L E P H O N E :  0 2 0  7 8 4 1  0 1 4 0     F A C S I M I L E :  0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 3 0 3

www.adamarchitecture.com  contact@adamarchitecture.com

T E L E P H O N E : 0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 8 4 3   F A C S I M I L E : 0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 3 0 3

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ADAM ARCHITECTURE LIMITED

H A M P S H I R E
O L D  H Y D E  H O U S E ,    7 5  H Y D E  S T R E E T

S O 2 3  7 D WW I N C H E S T E R , ,

Rev. DescriptionDate Initials

PROJECT

TITLE:

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWING No:

DRAWN BY:

1:500 @ A1

0 10 20 30 40 50

Scale 1:500

Red Line Boundary

Proposed Development

Proposed New Trees & Planting

Proposed Communal Green Space

Private Gardens

Existing Trees

Benches

Shared Surface

Metal Road

Pavement

Traditional Carriageway

Textured Surface

Hedgerow

Textured Surface
s

ew

N

Line of
existing water
main

Existing access
retained

Footpath
access

Existing trees to
be retained

Existing trees to
be retained

8
9

28

29

29

30

30

31

31

32

32

37

37

35

34

34

33

5

31

C
ycle/Bins

14

32

6
7

1234

Employment Area

5 1234

38

38

39

39

40

40

35

33

1 - 4

15

12

23

10
11

25

24

26

27

21
22

20

19
18

29

28

28

26

26

25

25

27

27

24

24

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

13

13

13

14

14

17

17
15

15

19

19
18

18

20

20

21

21

22

22

16

16

Cycle
Bins

23

23

7

7 6

6

5

Employment Area

16
17

30

37-40

33-36

05/03/2018

JL

A 16.01.18 Amended to show the revised tenure mix & water main
proposals

MB

B 22.01.18 Amended to show the revised layout MB

C 25.01.18 Minor amendments to the employment area MB

D 25.01.18 Minor amendments to the employment area MB

E 07.02.18 Minor amendments to the layouts for Plots 5-11 MB

F 20.02.18 Minor amendments to HGH comments MB

G 20.02.18 Amended to HGH comments JL

H 23.02.18 Amended to HGH comments JL
I 05.03.18 Minor amendments MB

J 09.03.18 Plots 1-4 & 23-24 amended MB

K 31.07.18 Revised layout according to SODC comments EA

L 08.08.18 Revised plots 12 & 13 according to SODC comments EA

M 10.08.18 Minor amendments. Issued for outline approval MB

N 13.08.18 Minor amendments. Issued for outline approval EA

O 12.09.18 Minor amendments to local authority comments MB

P
age 66

SAV_EMMBOW_1
Typewriter
Appendix B - Indicative Layout



GSPublisherEngine 1527.27.29.100

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes
only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.
All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision.
Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.
All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work on site.
No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.

The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.
Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, etc. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is
essential prior to work commencing.
Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found.  The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with
the contractor.

NA/6000/40A

Former Wyevale GardenCentre

Lower Shiplake, Henley

Proposed Street Elevation
 initials

L O N D O N   O F F I C E :     6   Q U E E N    S Q U A R E ,     W C 1 N  3 A T
T E L E P H O N E :  0 2 0  7 8 4 1  0 1 4 0     F A C S I M I L E :  0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 3 0 3

www.adamarchitecture.com  contact@adamarchitecture.com

T E L E P H O N E : 0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 8 4 3   F A C S I M I L E :  0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 3 0 3

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ADAM ARCHITECTURE LIMITED

H A M P S H I R E
O L D  H Y D E  H O U S E ,    7 5  H Y D E  S T R E E T

S O 23 7D WW I N C H E S T E R, ,

Rev. DescriptionDate Initials

PROJECT

TITLE:

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWING No:

DRAWN BY:

yr/mm

1:xxx @ A3
A Issued for outling approval10.08.18 MB

EA

August 2018

1:500 @ A3

P
age 67

SAV_EMMBOW_2
Typewriter
Appendix B - Indicative Street Scene



GSPublisherEngine 1560.26.29.100

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes
only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.
All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision.
Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.
All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work on site.
No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.
The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.
Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, etc. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is
essential prior to work commencing.
Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found.  The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with
the contractor.

NA/6000/06 O

Former Wyevale GardenCentre

Lower Shiplake, Henley

House Tenure Plan

L O N D O N   O F F I C E :     6   Q U E E N    S Q U A R E ,     W C 1N  3 A T
T E L E P H O N E :  0 2 0  7 8 4 1  0 1 4 0     F A C S I M I L E :  0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 3 0 3

www.adamarchitecture.com  contact@adamarchitecture.com

T E L E P H O N E : 0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 8 4 3   F A C S I M I L E : 0 1 9 6 2  8 4 3 3 0 3

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ADAM ARCHITECTURE LIMITED

H A M P S H I R E
O L D  H Y D E  H O U S E ,    7 5  H Y D E  S T R E E T

S O 2 3  7 D WW I N C H E S T E R , ,

Rev. DescriptionDate Initials

PROJECT

TITLE:

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWING No:

DRAWN BY:

1:500 @ A1

Line of
existing water
main

Existing access
retained

Footpath
access

Existing trees to
be retained

Existing trees to
be retained

8
9

28

29

29

30

30

31

31

32

32

37

37

35

34

34

33

5

31

C
ycle/Bins

14

32

6
7

1234

Employment Area

5 1234

38

38

39

39

40

40

35

33

1 - 4

15

12

23

10
11

25

24

26

27

21
22

20

19
18

29

28

28
26

26

25

25

27

27

24

24

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

13

13

13

14

14

17

17
15

15

19

19
18

18

20

20

21

21

22

22

16

16

Cycle
Bins

23

23

7

7 6

6

5

Employment Area

16
17

30

37-40

33-36

0 10 20 30 40 50

Scale 1:500
s

ew

N

Proposed Market Rate Housing

Proposed Affordable Rented Housing

Proposed Affordable Intermediate Housing

A 16.01.18 Amended to adjust the tenure mix & further comments MB

B 22.01.18 Amend layout & adjust the tenure mix to further comments MB

C 25.01.18 Minor amendments to the employment area MB

D 25.01.18 Minor amendments to the employment area MB

E 07.02.18 Minor amendments to the layouts for Plots 5-11 MB

F 20.02.18 Minor amendments to HGH comments MB

G 20.02.18 Amended to HGH comments JL

H 23.02.18 Amended to HGH comments JL

I 05.03.18 Minor amendments MB

J 09.03.18 Plots 1-4 & 23-24 amended MB

K 31.07.18 Revised layout according to SODC comments EA

EA

2018/Aug.

L 08.08.18 Revised plots 12 & 13 according to SODC comments EA

M 10.08.18 Minor amendments. Issued for outline approval MB

N 13.08.18 Minor amendments. Issued for outline approval EA

O 12.09.18 Minor amendments to local authority comments MB

Illustrative Housing Mix

Affordable housing to be secured in S106, as outlined
in the adjacent table, or as otherwise agreed with the
council's development team.

The market mix in general conformity with the SHMA

     1 bed   2 bed    3 bed 
Affordable rented   2        8    2 
Shared ownership  0     3    1 
       2   11    3 

P
age 68

SAV_EMMBOW_3
Typewriter
Appendix C - Indicative Tenure Plan



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

APPLICATION NO. P18/S3214/HH
APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER
REGISTERED 24.10.2018
PARISH SANDFORD
WARD MEMBER(S) Sue Lawson
APPLICANT Mr Neil Lawson
SITE The Pump House, 2 Heyford Hill Cottages, Heyford 

Hill Lane, Littlemore, OX4 4YJ
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing lean-to outbuilding and 

replacement with new garage/outbuilding 
(Amendment to approved planning application 
P17/S1877/HH - reduction in wall height of 
garage/outbuilding and increase in ridge height).

OFFICER Will Darlison

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is referred to planning committee because the applicant is the spouse 

of Councillor Sue Lawson.

1.2 The Pump House, 2 Heyford Hill Cottages is an unlisted semi-detached Victorian 
dwelling set in an isolated location within the parish of Sandford on Thames but 
outside of the built-up area of the settlement. The property is served by a generous 
garden sited to the West of the front elevation of the dwelling.

1.3 Located to the North West of the dwelling is an existing domestic outbuilding. It is of a 
brick and blockwork construction under a corrugated sheet roof with a rear wall which 
originally belonged to the now demolished Victorian pump house on the site.

1.4 The site is washed over by the Oxford Green Belt but is not located on Article 2(3) 
land. A plan identifying the site can be found at Appendix 1 to this report.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a new garage, workshop 

and domestic storage outbuilding replacing the existing lean-to outbuilding at the front 
of the site. 

2.2 The application follows on from planning permission P17/S1877/HH where a similar 
replacement garage outbuilding was approved. This application seeks to amend the 
height of the eaves and ridge to provide a pitch that can accommodate a natural slate. 
This is being proposed to be done whilst maintaining the volume of the building in line 
with what was previously approved.

2.3 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application can be found at Appendix 
2 to this report. All the plans and representations can be viewed on the council’s 
website www.southoxon.gov.uk under the planning application reference number.

Page 69

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S3214/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Sandford-on-Thames Parish Council – No objection

Contaminated Land - No strong views

Neighbour Representations - Neighbour Approve x (1)

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P17/S1877/HH - Approved (18/08/2017)

Demolition of existing lean-to outbuilding and replacement with new garage/outbuilding.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 (SOCS) policies:

CSEN2  -  Green Belt protection
CSQ3  -  Design

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP) policies:
EP8 – Contaminated land
D1  -  Principles of good design
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
GB4  -  Openness of Green Belt maintained
H13  -  Extension to dwelling

5.3 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG)
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

5.4 Sandford-on-Thames Neighbourhood Plan

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF allows for weight to be given to relevant policies in emerging 
plans, unless other material considerations indicate otherwise, and only subject to the 
stage of preparation of the plan, the extent of unresolved objections and the degree of 
consistency of the relevant emerging policies with the NPPF.

The Sandford-on-Thames neighbourhood plan is currently at the plan preparation stage 
and therefore cannot be afforded any weight in the determination of this planning 
application.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The issues to consider in relation to this proposal are;

 Impact on the openness and visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt.
 Impact on neighbours.
 Design, appearance and the impact upon the character and appearance of 

the existing dwelling.
 Impact on parking.
 Contaminated land.
 Community Infrastructure Levy.
 Other issues.

Page 70

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S1877/HH


South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Impact on the openness and visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt. The 
fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land 
permanently open. This is set out in Section 9 of the advice from Central Government in 
the NPPF.

The five purposes of the green belt are;

- to check the unrestricted urban sprawl of large built up areas;
- to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
- to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
- to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
- to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 

other urban land. 

In addition, there is a general presumption against inappropriate development. 
Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt.  ‘Very special 
circumstances’ to justify inappropriate development will not exist unless the harm by 
reason of inappropriateness and any other harm is clearly outweighed by other 
circumstances

The NPPF advises that a local planning authority should regard the construction of new 
buildings as inappropriate development in the Green Belt except for the following 
purposes;

• buildings for agriculture and forestry;
• provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, for 

cemeteries and other uses of land which preserve the openness of the green 
belt and does not conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

• the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building;

• the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same 
use and not materially larger than the one it replaces;

• limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local community 
needs under policies set out in the Local Plan; or

• limited infilling or partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed 
sites (brownfield land) whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding 
temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact on the openness of 
the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than the existing 
development. 

The proposed outbuilding would replace one that is in the same location and as such in 
order to argue that it would be an appropriate form of development it would have to fall 
within the section highlighted in bold above. There is no dispute that this is a 
replacement building and that it would be for the same use as the one that it would be 
replacing. The volume of the proposed outbuilding is 297 cubic metres, which would be 
larger than the existing outbuilding, which is 136.1 cubic metres but not to a materially 
larger extent. It should be noted that the proposed volume is the same as that for the 
previously approved outbuilding under application reference P17/S1877/HH.

This position would be predicated on the basis that the length of the proposed 
outbuilding would be 15 metres, which would be no greater than the length of the 
existing outbuilding when the section of brick wall at its West end is taken into account. 
Whilst this West end of the outbuilding’s built-form is not currently an enclosed space, 
there is sufficient evidence to conclude that it once was, as there are remnants of 
corrugated roof materials present. Therefore, I consider that the squaring off of this end 

Page 71



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

6.8

6.9

6.10

of the existing structure is not problematic in terms of the impact on openness in light of 
this areas status as a previously developed part of the site.

Furthermore, the overall height of the proposed outbuilding would be 4 metres which 
would be less than 1.5 metres higher than the existing outbuilding, which is 2.75 
metres. This is not an excessive increase in height particularly when taking into 
consideration the practicalities of the use of the proposed outbuilding for garaging, 
workshop and domestic storage purposes. The use of a dual pitch on the proposed roof 
would in my opinion aid openness and lessen the impact of the increase in height, as 
from the North and South perspectives the roof would slope up and away from you 
narrowing up to the apex of the ridge. 

Policy GB4 of the SOLP is also relevant to this proposed development. This policy 
states that the impact of proposed development on the visual amenity of the Green Belt 
should be minimised. The existing outbuilding is in a poor condition and from a visual 
amenity perspective makes a negative contribution to the Green Belt with no 
concessions made to its open nature or rural character. The proposed outbuilding 
would represent an uplift in terms of visual amenity with strong design cues being 
drawn with the host dwelling with the matching brickwork and cast stone corner quoins

To conclude, notwithstanding its greater volume the proposed outbuilding would 
demonstrate a sufficient degree of proportionality with regards to the existing 
outbuilding that, in conjunction with a modest increase in width and height, would not 
be materially larger. It should also be noted that the proposed volume is the same as 
that for the previously approved outbuilding under application reference P17/S1877/HH.
Therefore, in summary the proposed outbuilding would be an appropriate form of 
development within the Oxford Green Belt and one that is not materially harmful to its 
openness or visual amenity. 

6.11

6.12

Impact on neighbours. Policy H13 criterion (iii) of the SOLP states that domestic 
outbuildings will be permitted provided that the amenity of nearby properties is not 
materially harmed.

The application site is, despite its close proximity to Oxford, an isolated location. The 
nearest neighbouring dwelling is the other half of this semi-detached pair; 1 Heyford Hill 
Cottages. The proposed outbuilding is located to the North West of the cottages with a 
degree of separation and screening from this neighbour that would make the potential 
for harmful neighbour impact very low. This is strengthened by virtue of the single 
storey scale of the proposed outbuilding and that as previously discussed the 
development is a replacement outbuilding. 

6.13

6.14

Design, appearance and the impact upon the character and appearance of the 
existing dwelling. Policy H13 criterion (ii) of the SOLP states that new ancillary 
outbuildings will be permitted provided that the scale and design of the proposal is in 
keeping with the character of the dwelling, the site and the appearance of the 
surrounding area.

The proposed replacement outbuilding would be of an uncomplicated rectangular plan 
form with a dual pitched roof. It would be of a size, scale and massing that would 
demonstrate a clear degree of subservience to the existing main dwelling and it would 
not employ any overtly domestic features such as dormer roof structures and would be 
entirely single storey. The use of matching brickwork and cast stone corner quoins 
would ensure that the outbuilding would be sympathetic and tie in well with the existing 
dwelling. For these reasons I consider that the design and appearance of the 

Page 72



South Oxfordshire District Council – Committee Report – 19 December 2018

outbuilding is acceptable and in keeping with the character and appearance of the host 
dwelling as well as the wider area.

6.15

6.16

Impact on parking. The current condition of the existing outbuildings is such that they 
cannot realistically contribute to the parking provision at the site. The proposed 
replacement would, according to the submitted drawings accommodate a combination 
of garaging, workshop and garden/boat storage. The internally measured dimensions of 
the replacement building are such that it would more than adequately meet the size 
requirements for a garage and alongside the aforementioned other functions it would 
provide one parking space at the site. 

There would remain a sufficiently large area of gravelled driveway area within the 
confines of the site to allow for at least two further off-street parking spaces. I am 
therefore of the view that the impact upon parking at the site is more than sufficient and 
complies with parking standards.

6.17 Contaminated land. Due to the former sewage works that was located adjacent to the 
application site the Environmental Protection Team were consulted on the application. 
The comments received from the Environmental Enforcement Officer on the previously 
approved application recommended that in light of the former use of the adjacent land 
and the sensitive nature of the residential development that an unsuspected 
contaminated land condition is imposed on any planning consent. I am of the view that 
this is a reasonable and necessary condition required as a precautionary measure in 
case any land contamination is encountered during the course of implementing the 
development.

6.18 Community Infrastructure Levy. The council’s CIL charging schedule has been 
adopted and will apply to relevant proposals from 1 April 2016. CIL is a planning charge 
that local authorities can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support the 
development of their area and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint created 
as a result of the development. In this case CIL is not liable as the proposed 
development would not result in a foot print increase in excess of 100 square metres.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted because the proposed 

development would be of an acceptable design and appearance, would not materially 
harm the amenities of neighbouring dwellings or materially detract from the openness 
or visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt and in conjunction with the attached 
conditions the proposal accords with development plan policies.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement three years – full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Materials as on plan.
4. Contamination (unsuspected contaminated land).

Author: Will Darlison
E-mail: will.darlison@southandvale.gov.uk
Contact No.: 01235 422600

Page 73

mailto:will.darlison@southandvale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 75

Agenda Item 10



1
4

0
0

1
4

0
0

1
4

0
0

1
4

0
0

2
6

0
0

2
6

0
0

2
6

0
0

2
6

0
0

6000600060006000

job no:

scale

:

Luke Williamson Architect Ltdwww.lukewilliamson.co.uk

drawing no:

@ A3

revision:

1 : 100

17022

Elevations as proposedThe Pump House, Heyford Hill Lane, Littlemore, OX4 4YJ

Planning P02

Mr & Mrs Lawson

1 : 100P02

east facing elevation1

1 : 100P02

south facing elevation2

1 : 100P02

north facing elevation3

1 : 100P02

west facing elevation4

1 : 100P02

Section 1 P5

P02

3D View 1P6

P02

3D View 2P7

0 4

1:100

1 2 3 5m

Natural Slate Roof to match 

existing house

Appendix 2

P
age 76



5

P02

15000150001500015000

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

N job no:

scale

:

Luke Williamson Architect Ltdwww.lukewilliamson.co.uk

drawing no:

@ A3

revision:

1 : 100

17022

Plans as proposedThe Pump House, Heyford Hill Lane, Littlemore, OX4 4YJ

Planning P01

Mr & Mrs Lawson

1 : 100P01

P3.0 Ground floor as propsoed1

1 : 100P01

P6.0 Roof Plan as proposed2

0 4

1:100

1 2 3 5m

P
age 77



The Pump House

2 Heyford Hill Cottage

Oxford

OX4 4YJ

---

CLIENT

JOB No:

ISSUE

REV DATE DESCRIPTION INITIALS

DATE:CHK:DRN:

STATUS:

DRAWING No:

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

Mr and Mrs N. Lawson

S
H

E
E

T
 
S

I
Z

E
 
-
 
A

2

NOTES:

ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS OR DETAILS TO BE

REPORTED TO BENJAMIN HILL DESIGNS LTD FOR CLARIFICATION

Location and Site Plan

(Out Building - Scheme 1)

BHD-0011-PL100

N.H

May 2107

1:500

1:1250

P1

Planning

XX

P1 24-05-17 Red/Blue lines updated as planning officer

comments

N.H.

P
age 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
Heyford Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Existing Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
1:500 Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
North

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Existing original 450mm thick red facing brick wall of original pumping station building on the rear face only c.15m long x 2.75m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Heyford Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Existing house No.2 with all latest rear extensions shown at roof level

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Graveled access driveway and parking area to side and front of house

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Existing additional land obtained by vacant possession

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Existing outbuildings of brick and block construction with lean-to roofs, with gross floor area of c.57m2 to be removed together with the original Victorian red brick wall at rear

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Construct new single storey outbuildings gross floor area 86m2 with duo-pitched sheet metal covered roof slopes 10° pitch gable ends incompliance with permitted development rules

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Approx. footprint of original boiler house with existing wall in-situ.

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Areas & Volumes : Scheme 1 Existing outbuildings - 56.72m2 : 136.1m3 56.72m2 : 136.1m3 New outbuildings -     86.31m2 : 254.1m3

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
O S Location Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
1:1250

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2016

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
All rights reserved. Licence number 100122432

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Heyford Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
North

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
30m

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Railway Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Heyford Hill Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Coach House


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes
	Planning committee minutes - 21 November 2018
	Minutes


	8 P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame
	P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame - Appendix 1
	P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame - Appendix  2a
	P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame - Appendix 2b
	P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame - Appendix 2c
	P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame - Appendix 2d
	P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame - Appendix 2e

	9 P18/S0951/O - Wyevale Country Gardens, Reading Road, Harpsden, RG9 4AE
	P18/S0951/O - Wyevale Country Gardens, Reading Road, Harpsden - Appendices
	Appendix A
	Appendix B 1
	11 O Site Layout as Proposed

	Appendix B 2
	40A Proposed Street Elevation

	Appendix C
	06 O House Tenure Plan



	10 P18/S3214/HH - The Pump House, 2 Heyford Hill Cottages, Heyford Hill Lane, Littlemore, OX4 4YJ
	P18/S3214/HH - The Pump House, 2 Heyford Hill Cottages, Heyford Hill Lane, Littlemore - Appendices
	GIS Extract
	Composite Plan Proposed Dwg 17022 P02
	Sheets
	P01 - Plans as proposed
	P02 - Elevations as proposed


	Floor & Roof Plan Proposed Dwg 17022 P01
	Sheets
	P01 - Plans as proposed
	P02 - Elevations as proposed


	Location & Site Plans_drwgno. BHD-0011 - PL100-P1
	Sheets and Views
	PL100







